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SENATOR JACKIE SPEIER:  This committee of the State Senate is responsible for overseeing what is reported to be an $80 billion insurance industry, but those figures are probably, actually, a little bit on the low side.  And we also have responsibility over the Department of Managed Health Care—under the Senate jurisdiction.

My name is Jackie Speier.  I’m the chair of the Senate Insurance Committee.  I’m joined by a number of my colleagues tonight.  The vice chair of this committee is Senator Bill Morrow, who’s on my far left.  Sitting next to him we welcome Assemblymember Jay La Suer from the State Assembly and also the representative of this area in the State Legislature.  And to my far right is Senator Nell Soto from San Bernardino.  She also was in an area where there was, indeed, much fire damage as well.  And joining me at my immediate right is the staff director to the Senate Insurance Committee:  Brian Perkins.

In just a few moments we will begin the hearing and receive testimony from any of you in the public who are inclined to speak about problems that you’ve had relative to your insurance as it relates to the firestorms.  We invite you to fill out one of these forms, and Erin Ryan, who is standing at the back of the room, will walk down the aisle and collect them.  If we have them, then it just assists us as we move through the evening testimony.  There’s also a second document that’s called “Authorization and Consent for Disclosure by My Insurer,” and I’ll explain that to you in just a moment.

Tonight’s hearing is intended to be constructive.  It is not just another hearing where we’re going to hear about the woes that many of you have been experiencing.  It is our intent that this particular hearing be a hands-on effort to try and assist you in resolving your claims.  Perhaps some of you already have your claims settled.  Perhaps others of you have not, and perhaps some of you have actually gone on to file suit.  We will be discussing all of these claims tonight.  But I want to take this hearing to a different level than is typical of committee hearings.  I really want to offer the services of the Senate Committee on Insurance if you are stuck somehow in the claims process.  The committee has no direct authority over the insurance industry; however, from time to time we do have some persuasion with them.

With us tonight, sprinkled among you, are a number of lobbyists representing many of the insurance carriers in California and also some company representatives.  The truth of the matter is, eventually all these claims will have to be settled, and it is our belief that getting them settled quickly is to everyone’s advantage.

The recent passage of legislation that I carried (that Governor Schwarzenegger signed into law) that creates a permanent mediation program within the Department of Insurance is a step in trying to provide claimants with an opportunity to resolve their disputes without having to go to court.  Most of us who have insurance basically want to be able to collect on it when we have a catastrophic event happen.  It is not our intention nor interest in wanting to sue our insurer.  And this mediation process is conceived of for that purpose:  to try and bring the parties together in a voluntary setting and have them mediate the issues.
In late October I asked Mr. Perkins, the staff director of the Insurance Committee, to come to San Diego to assess the situation.  Shortly thereafter, Mr. Perkins met with representatives of Allied.  From that meeting, Allied walked away convinced that it could resolve the remaining open claims that it has.  Sixteen are represented by one attorney; 33 total claims.  That attorney has been sent a check to cover additional living expenses for his clients through the end of the year.

So, what I’m telling you is, for the first time we’re able to announce to you tonight some good news if you are an Allied Insurance claimant.  [Applause.]  Allied Insurance has now agreed to extend the ALE—the additional living expenses—for its claimants through the end of the year, and we’re hopeful even longer, if necessary.

AUIDENCE:  This year?

SENATOR SPEIER:  End of the calendar year.  So, it will be extended for a minimum of two months and hopefully even more.

Now, there’s even more good news from Allied.  As we also know, volunteers organized by the Shadow Mountain Church have organized a massive relief and debris removal effort in the aftermath of the fire.  Pastor St. John has indicated to us that he wanted to help work with Allied to identify the policyholders who receive that assistance.  An attempt will be made to put a value on those efforts and to pay that value to the policymakers, just as Pastor St. John had hoped would result.
So, congratulations to Pastor St. John and to the community of volunteers of this church who helped many of the survivors of the firestorm.  And we want to thank Allied for recognizing that the work that was done should have a value and that value should be attributed to the insured.

So, ladies and gentlemen, it’s time for this healing to begin.  I want the public to know that many insurers have already stated that they are making progress.  Many have said that if problems exist they will address them.  A few have drawn lines in the sand, but I implore claimants and insurers here this evening:  Let us speak tonight as Californians.  It is possible to resolve these claims without protracted litigation, and tonight we want to start that program.
At this time I would like to extend my deepest appreciation—and I’m sure many of you in this audience would as well—to the Shadow Mountain Community Church and to its extraordinary pastor, David St. John.  [Applause.]  Pastor, where are you?  He’s standing there humbly in the back of the room.

I first learned of Pastor St. John just a few weeks ago, but he and his entire congregation have been an extraordinary force of good in the recovery efforts here in San Diego County.  For those of you who are from distant points, this church mobilized 1,500 volunteers and cleared damaged homes for weeks.  Pastor St. John has also been providing emotional support to those who have faced crises in their families.  This is a ministry of the heart that I am sure requires an extraordinary amount of strength.  On behalf of the State of California, Pastor, thank you for your efforts, for your ongoing efforts, and for agreeing to host our committee hearing tonight.  [Applause.]
Ladies and gentlemen, the format tonight is quite simple.  If you want to talk, you have the opportunity to talk, and we have forms here, as I indicated earlier.  If you don’t want to talk, obviously you don’t have to talk.  However, if you do have a claim that is in dispute and you would like to resolve it without going into litigation, even though you may have already filed a case, you can fill out this Authorization and Consent form.  It then gives the committee the ability to communicate with the insurance company about your claim in an attempt to help with negotiations.

Now, you may say, Well, why would we do that?  Well, it’s been the policy of this committee for a number of years to provide assistance to consumers.  After the Northridge earthquake—some six years after the Northridge earthquake—the Senate Insurance Committee held a hearing in Granada Hills.  We had a gathering similar to this.  There were about 90 people that filed these particular Authorization and Consent forms.  As a result of doing that, we were able to intercede on their behalf with the insurers, and over twenty of those individuals actually had their issues resolved with their insurance company with our help.  And let me explain to you how successful some of those negotiations were.
Some of the claims were for as much as $70,000.  Some claims were as small as $20,000.  The fact of the matter is, we were able to resolve them without going to litigation, and I think that is a very important role that we will play tonight attempting to assist you.
I would now like to ask my colleagues if they have any introductory comments that they would like to make.  Let me start with the vice chair of the  committee:  Senator Morrow.

SENATOR BILL MORROW:  Thank you, Madam Chair, for the opportunity.  I’d like to forego any comments I might have, in the interest of time.  I’m looking forward and am anxious to hear the comments and testimony and get into the issues.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. La Suer?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER JAY LA SUER:  Thank you.  I have no comments at this time, but I would like to maybe, during the course of the testimony of the victims, say a few things.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Senator Soto?

SENATOR NELL SOTO:  Thank you.  I, too, want to thank everybody for being here tonight.  Sometimes we have to sacrifice little things at home so we can make some of these meetings, and I’m very, very glad to see as many of you as are here.  And I know it may not have been easy for some of you to get here, especially at this hour.  So, your presence is truly appreciated.  And I want to thank the Old Fire Recovery Group—they are a voluntary group made up of survivors from the old fire in San Bernardino County—for being here as well.  I guess they are here, right?  Most of all, I want to thank my colleague, Senator Speier, for convening this important meeting.

I’m experiencing a kind of déjà vu from the last time we did this.  It seems that every time we have a major disaster in California, we inevitably have discussions like these in which we hear of ongoing problems that people are experiencing.  It’s very clear to me that we need to come up with better policies and procedures for dealing with post-disaster recovery.  FEMA, for example, only helps people for a short while, and that’s with most of their basic needs, and then it disappears.  We need to have a structure in place so that when major disasters occur, people/neighbors are able to work together.  Right now, neighborhood recovery happens on an ad hoc basis with much dependence on nonprofit groups or the local government.  I’d like to see some kind of division of community recovery in the California Department of Homeland Security.
So, again, thank you, Senator Speier, for convening this meeting tonight.  And I want to say just one thing besides this.  I’m terribly sorry that people have had to endure this awful experience.  First with the Cedar fire and subsequently with any problems they may be experiencing in relation to the insurance companies.  I hope that we can help you here tonight a little bit, and maybe we can give you some more hope.  As Senator Speier said, we will try to help you in any way that we can.
And thank you, Senator Speier, for having the meeting.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Now, as I indicated earlier, there are representatives of a number of the insurers who are here in the room.  There are tables set up in the back of the room.  So, if, in fact, you would like to attempt negotiations with a particular insurer, we will assist you in that.  And Ms. Ryan will be able to put you in contact with the right person.  My understanding is, one of the insurers actually brought a checkbook with them tonight.  So, who knows?  We might have some great success stories.

Would the representatives of the various insurance companies stand so we can at least identify them. 

SENATOR SOTO:  Don’t be afraid.  We’re not going to throw anything at you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  And Ms. Ryan will get you connected with the representative from your insurance company, if you’re still inclined to talk with them.

My understanding is, State Farm is represented, Allstate is represented.  Farmers.  State Farm brought the checkbook, my understanding is.  

We are now going to begin the hearing.  I want to invite the supervisor from this district who has been vigilant in her efforts to try and represent her constituents.  Supervisor Dianne Jacob is here and has some opening remarks.

Welcome.

SUPERVISOR DIANNE JACOB:  Thank you very much, and thank you, Senator Speier and Senator Morrow and Senator Soto and Assemblyman La Suer, for being here and convening this hearing because I know it’s very dangerous to stand between an insurance company writing a check and comments to be made.

I’m going to be very brief so you can hear directly from the people that are here.  But I also want to thank numerous residents that came here tonight, and hopefully, some of the problems can be resolved that they’re facing.  Their fight is why we’re here, and their testimony will let all of us better understand what changes are needed in the insurance industry.
One year ago, as you know, this region was devastated by the worst fire in California history.  In the Second Supervisorial District, which I represent, which includes all of the area that was devastated by the Cedar fire, except for the area in the city of San Diego, we’re talking about 2,000 homes that were destroyed.  This means that 2,000 families were forced to go through the difficult process of rebuilding their homes and their lives.  

As you’re fully aware, having a helpful and reliable insurance provider during this difficult time is critical to that rebuilding effort.  It was frustrating to learn that several of the insurance companies are impeding the rebuilding effort.  Many constituents have shared with me that their insurance company has dragged out the claims process, and they’ve been unwilling to be flexible with their individual situations.  East County in particular presents many challenges to a family trying to rebuild in their home, and I think that’s important to understand for the insurance companies as well as those of you who are trying to make needed changes at the state level.  Most of the homes destroyed were in a rural and very rugged environment, which tends to complicate the rebuilding process, which makes it longer than in those areas where it’s urban.
Some of the hurdles facing East County fire victims include boundary line disputes, unpermitted structures, difficult topography, septic problems, and lack of public infrastructure.  It’s not easy.  Consideration, I believe, must be given to those personal circumstances faced by each and every individual by their insurance companies.  Some of the rural communities have been slow to rebuild, and as a result, some insurance companies are coldly denying an alternative living expense extension, because either they just don’t want to do it or they just don’t understand.  I hope tonight will be a greater understanding to those insurance companies.  These people need the money to live on a temporary basis, as long as it takes, until they can rebuild their permanent structure.  [Applause.]  Families need to be secure that they will be treated fairly by their insurance provider.  They need to have a willing partner in that rebuilding process, not a negligent corporation that is looking for ways not to help.

The October 2003 firestorm has also greatly affected homeowners that didn’t lose a home during the fires, and that’s important to also know.  Many have seen their insurance costs increase tremendously, with some homeowners now without insurance.  This is wrong, and it needs to be stopped.  All San Diegans—those who lost their homes and those who did not—need to make certain that insurance is there to protect them.

I’ve also heard concerns about the California Fair Plan, which is supposed to be a safety net for homeowners that can’t get insurance from private providers.  Sounds like a good deal, but some residents have informed me that the Fair Plan is requiring 200 feet of brush clearance—well beyond the requirement of 100 feet.  That’s just not fair.  Others have told me that San Diego County is not considered a high brush area by the state.  That’s absurd!  This is almost impossible to believe because San Diego County has some of the most hazardous fire conditions in the nation.  Designating San Diego County as a high-brush area is something the state needs to address, and I hope that you will encourage and support that.  This will help people who wish to be provided insurance under the Fair Plan.
Two-thirds of San Diego County did not burn.  This means that other families may experience the same insurance difficulties in the future if action is not taken to protect homeowners.  Progress made by this committee and by the State of California can make a significant difference when the next fire hits this region—and it will.  It’s not a matter of “if.”  It’s a matter of “when.”
So, in conclusion, I implore you to take back to Sacramento the testimony that you will hear tonight from individuals and use it to propose bipartisan and meaningful legislation that will assist homeowners with insurance during these times of the greatest need.  

And I thank you very much.  [Applause.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right, now we are going to hear an update from the Department of Insurance.  If you will come forward and state your name for the record.

MR. DONALD HILLA:  My name is Donald Hilla, senior staff counsel.

MR. TONY CIGNARALE:  Good evening, Madam Chair and Members.  Tony Cignarale, chief of the Consumer Services of the Department of Insurance.
I’ve prepared a brief outline of the complaint data that we’ve compiled over the last year.  As well, I’m prepared to provide you an update of the mediation program.  And at the end of this, we’ll be available to answer any questions you might have.

Approximately 18,000 insurance claims were filed as a result of the Southern California wildfires.  About 3,000 of those were total losses.  The remaining partial losses are pretty much all settled.  They’re smoke damage, temporary evacuation costs, things like that.  The real crux of this issue, obviously, is the total losses.

Of the total losses out there, we received 756 consumer complaints.  Of those 756 consumer complaints, we’ve been able to intervene and recover about $10.7 million on behalf of consumers.  A segment of that is the underinsurance issue.  Three hundred and eighteen of those complaints are allegations of underinsurance.  And of those, we were able to intervene in about 50 of those claims and recover about $3.3 million on behalf of consumers.

Of the remaining, early on, the issues dealt with delay, scope of loss, arguing over the estimates, square footage, et cetera.  What we’re finding now is most of those issues have been resolved, with some exceptions, obviously.  The two main issues are the additional living expense issue and the underinsurance issue.  For the most part, people—people we’re seeing, anyway—do have their scope of loss and the rest, and they know how much, generally speaking, it’s going to cost to rebuild.  It’s a matter of permitting and getting the commitment from the company to pay what those costs are as well as to commit to pay the additional living expense during that time.
In reference to the mediation program, we have about 300 cases in the program.  It’s fairly new, we’re at the very beginning of that process.  Of that 308, 14 of those cases were resolved within that first statutory 28-day notice where the company has to either settle the case or agree to go to mediation.  So, that was a good resolution there.  Twenty-five cases have been declined by insurers, and those are cases where they do have discretion on the underinsurance issue.  The statute (SB 64) did allow discretion.  In other words, it was not mandatory if the issue in dispute was underinsurance.  We’re still working with those companies in hopes that they will reverse that position and enter into the mediation program.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, they’re not mandated to engage in mediation.  They have nothing to lose by going into mediation.  Is that correct?

MR. CIGNARALE:  That’s our position, yes.  That’s one of the benefits, the Commissioner did send a letter to all the insurance companies about a month or so ago when SB 64 was enacted and expressed all the benefits of going into mediation.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Is it across a number of insurers, or are you seeing it in particular insurers?

MR. CIGNARALE:  It’s particular to a few insurers.  For the most part, 90 percent of the insurance companies are agreeing to go through the mediation process.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, 90 percent of the insurance companies are going through the mediation process, even if it’s an issue of underinsurance.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Correct.  I’m sorry—there are a few companies where, if it is in litigation, they’re going when it’s not in litigation on underinsurance, they will decline and refuse if it is in litigation, which is also another exception to the mandatory requirement.

And also, in addition, 18 cases of those 308 were declined by the insured, and I’ll have details as to the reasons why.  I know a few of them are because they are in litigation, and they would rather go that route.
SENATOR SPEIER:  But nothing precludes an insured from accessing the mediation program, even if they have sought litigation, as long as the insurer agreed.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Yes.  In fact, what we did was we turned every case we had into the mediation program and offered it up, giving the insurer the opportunity to either accept or decline at that point.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Senator Soto?

SENATOR SOTO:  If they were underinsured, that wasn’t a reason why they didn’t get anything at all.  Did they get at least that?

MR. CIGNARALE:  We found that in 99 percent of these cases that we have in-house, for the most part, policy limits have been paid or offered.  The dispute is now between that policy limit and what the insured believes is the actual cost to rebuild.  

SENATOR SOTO:  What recourse did they have then if they didn’t get enough or to get more than they thought they should have?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Well, in the majority of the cases that we have, we don’t feel we have the authority to intervene and force the company to do so.  But we have intervened in about 50 of them.  We did find, in fact, some transactional errors.  Either the agent put the wrong square footage down or the inflation factor that’s supposed to raise the limit every year never triggered. So, for the last ten years, they were flat; they had a flat limit.  We were able to get the company to recalculate and bring that limit up.  In some of those cases it was enough to cover the cost of rebuilding.  Absent those transactional errors, the department doesn’t feel that it has the authority to intervene on those.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And who are the two insurers that are declining to mediate?  It is public record, is it not?

MR. CIGNARALE:  We’re still working with them.  The two are the Fair   Plan . . .
SENATOR SPEIER:  The Fair Plan?

MR. CIGNARALE:  . . . and State Farm.

SENATOR SPEIER:  The Fair Plan kind of mystifies me.  The Fair Plan is a creature of state law.  Is it not?

MR. CIGNARALE:  In fact it is.  We have spoken to the Fair Plan about it, and thus far their answer is still “no.”  That they are exercising their statutory right to decline, and they are refusing to do so.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, I think we’re going to have a subsequent conversation with the Fair Plan.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Since we’re on the subject on the Fair Plan, I will address the comment made earlier by, I believe, Councilwoman Jacobs.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Supervisor Jacob.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Supervisor Jacob—regarding the Fair Plan.  We did discuss the issue with the Fair Plan regarding adding additional areas of the state into the so-called designated brush areas, but in speaking to the Fair Plan, there was, really, no pragmatic result in doing so, in the sense that the only difference between someone being designated in a brush area and not is that they had to go through the three declinations to get the coverage.  That issue was resolved in an order issued by the Commissioner a few months back.  So, now they’re on an equal playing field; there is no requirement for the declinations.  The applicant can now self-certify that they did attempt to make a search.  And that’s all done during the application process.  There is no additional requirement on it.  In some cases it can be a negative by designating an area a brush area.  Because, in the past, when this happened, when this initially occurred, when the ISO did designate those brush areas, some of the insurance companies pulled out of those areas or restricted their underwriting in those areas because of the mere fact that the Fair Plan was now designating that a high-risk area.
SENATOR SOTO:  What happens when they pull out?

SENATOR SPEIER:  They can’t pull out.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Well, it didn’t occur.  The brush areas weren’t changed.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Just give us a little tutorial on the Fair Plan.  As I understand it, it’s a creature of state statute.  It is supposed to be the provider of homeowners insurance, and fire insurance in particular, of last resort, particularly for people who reside in high brush, high fire hazard areas.  Correct?
MR. CIGNARALE:  Correct.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And it’s a not-for-profit?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Yes.  It either refunds money back to the participating insurance companies or seeks monies from them, depending on what kind of year they have.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And who has jurisdiction over it?

MR. CIGNARALE:  The Commissioner.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, the Insurance Commissioner can tell the Fair Plan:  Insure these homes.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Exactly.  And I’m not suggesting that the Fair Plan would pull out.  I’m suggesting that the other insurers that were writing in those areas, such as State Farm, Allstate, Farmers.  One of the negatives imparted to us regarding designated. . . . going throughout the state and designating all these new areas now in the state high-risk areas could conceivably result in some companies restricting their underwriting in those areas; perhaps not selling in those areas.
SENATOR SPEIER:  So, an insurer in California can choose to participate in the Fair Plan or not.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Correct.

SENATOR SPEIER:  An insurer.  If you sell insurance in California, you must participate in the Fair Plan.  So, it’s not discretionary or voluntary.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Correct.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, your comment that somehow they’ll pull out—what do you mean by that?

MR. CIGNARALE:  In other words, they would say, Go buy your coverage through the Fair Plan, not from us, Allstate Insurance Company.  Do you know what I’m saying?

SENATOR SPEIER:  I understand, but . . .

MR. CIGNARALE:  So, Allstate wouldn’t be selling through their agents to the homeowners in those areas.  They would say, We don’t sell in that area anymore.  Please call the Fair Plan.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Supervisor Jacob was suggesting that some homeowners can’t even get insurance through the Fair Plan because they’re creating this artificial 200-foot clearance, which it sounds like is illegal for them to do.  The Insurance Commissioner has authority over the Fair Plan, so maybe we can ask you to convey to the Insurance Commissioner that he should take action to make sure that the Fair Plan is complying with the statute, which would mean that they would have to provide it to anyone.  [Applause.]

MR. CIGNARALE:  I absolutely agree.  My understanding of that issue is that they don’t refuse to write you if you don’t clear it.  They would just place that brush fire surcharge on you, which may make it cost-prohibitive.  So, that’s one issue that we would look at and try and clarify—because it is a high surcharge.
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  We need to discuss that further.

Any other comments you have?

MR. CIGNARALE:  No.  We’re prepared to answer any questions though.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Questions by the committee?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER LA SUER:  I have a question for you.  Comparatively speaking, how does the Fair Plan price for insurance compare with regular companies?

MR. CIGNARALE:  It’s probably a little higher for the portion of coverage that it covers, but it does not cover liability, it does not cover replacement cost on your contents, and it doesn’t cover a number of other areas that you might consider to be full coverage on a homeowners policy.  So, when you add them all together, you would need to purchase a Fair Plan policy in addition to what’s called a “wrap-up” policy that would cover those gaps in coverage:  your liability, your replacement cost for contents, and those other items.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER LA SUER:  When testimony was taken at the Governor’s Blue Ribbon Fire Commission, the people who testified with regards to this so-called Fair Plan testified that the costs were so high that they could not afford that and would not be provided insurance through a regular company.  So, they found themselves in a situation that they could not have insurance, and the Fair Plan was the most unfair insurance company out there.  [Applause.]

MR. CIGNARALE:  That could very well be the case, especially with the 200-foot clearance rule.  If they don’t clear the brush, the surcharge is very high.

SENATOR SPEIER:  But the fact of the matter is, the Commissioner has authority over the Fair Plan.  Correct?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Correct.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, the Insurance Commissioner could say to the Fair Plan, You cannot impose the surcharge for the 200 feet, for instance.
MR. CIGNARALE:  The surcharge is required under the statute.  I don’t know that the 200 feet is required, but there is a required brush surcharge.  If they don’t clear the brush, the statute requires the surcharge.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Can we get clarification on the 200 feet, counsel?

MR. HILLA:  10094.3, we’re talking about, right?  Brush hazard?  [Pause.]  What we can do is get back to you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You’ll get back to us on this.
SENATOR SOTO:  Aren’t they in violation then if they don’t comply?

SENATOR SPEIER:  They have a surcharge if they don’t.

MR. CIGNARALE:  They have a surcharge if they don’t, and in fact, if their neighbor’s with Fair Plan and their 200 feet extends into their neighbor’s area, then, if their neighbor refuses to clear, then the law states that they can’t get charged the surcharge but they can charge the neighbor the surcharge.  However, if the neighbor is not with the Fair Plan and they refuse to clear their brush, then the statute still allows the Fair Plan to charge a surcharge to that consumer.  

SENATOR SPEIER:  But the Fair Plan is there for every California homeowner if they can’t get insurance anywhere else.  There is no need now to have three declinations, and the question becomes whether or not the surcharge is imposed or not and at 100 feet or 200 feet, and he’ll get back to us about that.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Sure.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay.  Any other questions?

SENATOR MORROW:  Just quickly, Madam Chair.

Who actually sets the surcharge on that?  I understand it may be a requirement in statute, but who sets that?
MR. CIGNARALE:  Well, the surcharge is required by statute.  The amount of the surcharge is set through the rate filing process that the Fair Plan files with the department’s Rate Regulation Branch.
SENATOR MORROW:  Is that something that the Department of Insurance would have input into?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Absolutely.  As to the amount to make sure that it’s not inadequate, excessive, or discriminatory.

SENATOR MORROW:  So, it’s completely up to the Department of Insurance to determine whether or not they’re adequate, inadequate, just and reasonable.
MR. CIGNARALE:  Correct.

SENATOR MORROW:  Has there been a problem in that regard as to the amount of the surcharge?  Somebody mentioned—it may have been you—I apologize—that apparently these costs, or the surcharges, that would be required would be cost-prohibitive. I have no clue what the surcharge is.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Hopefully, we can have some input from some other individuals here who are with the Fair Plan and get a sense.

SENATOR MORROW:  I just wanted to clarify.  The Department of Insurance. . . . I mean, if it is cost-prohibitive, the Department of Insurance can do something about it.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Well, if it’s cost-prohibitive, we wouldn’t necessarily. . . . that wouldn’t be the driving factor.  The issue is whether the rate being charged is adequate, inadequate, excessive, or discriminatory.

MR. HILLA:  And actuarially sound.  You know, whatever they would file, they will have data to back it up.  And also, as a policy matter, historically the department has really not steered people toward Fair because it’s not a complete policy.  It’s really just a fire policy.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, let me give you another perspective.  Having held a number of hearings on homeowners insurance and how inadequate it can be, some would argue that a Fair Plan, at least it’s giving you the fire coverage.  You don’t have the liability coverage, but at least you’re protected for purposes of a fire.  And if you’re looking at figures for homeowners insurance that are excessive, then it becomes the more pragmatic and cost-effective approach.

MR. HILLA:  Agreed.  Since the advent of the hard market, the availability problems with insurance that started over a year-and-a-half ago, and especially since the wildfires in October of last year, we have been looking at Fair and looking at different options we might be able to work with Fair.  And that was the basis of the Commissioner changing the three-declination rule and opening up some of the other areas.  But it’s still being considered at this point.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you very much.

We’re going to ask that we hear first from the survivors of the San Bernardino fires since they have traveled the longest distances.  I understand there are people here from the San Bernardino area.  Is that true?  If so, could you stand and be identified and come forward?  [Applause.]

Have you filled out one of these forms?

MS. LILA HAYES:  I have not.

SENATOR SPEIER:  That’s fine.

MS. HAYES:  I was not planning necessarily on speaking.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, you don’t have to speak, unless you’re inclined to.

MS. HAYES:  Well, I did want to. 

SENATOR SPEIER:  Identify yourself for the record.

MS. HAYES:  My name is Lila Hayes, and I’m the coordinator for the Old Fire Recovery Group.

It is quite a ways for the people in San Bernardino, as Senator Soto knows, so I did request that people at least send an email that kind of stated a little bit about what they were going through.  So, I’ve got eleven different emails, and I brought them here for you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Can you summarize them for us?

MS. HAYES:  Of the eleven emails, I received one that praised their insurance company.  It was AAA.  [Applause.]  I received two emails that    said one of them had retained a lawyer, and the second person was in the mediation program.  I know of several others that are also in litigation, but I don’t have that summary with us.  The others. . . . let’s see, that would leave eight had various complaints; majority of them underinsurance.  There were about ten major concerns that we had summarized, and some of the people addressed some of the issues, and some of them addressed just the ones that pertained to them.  There were some that were quite lengthy.  Others were brief, mostly regarding underinsurance.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Are you going to present them to the committee so we can at least contact them and see if they would like us to assist them in any way?  And actually, you’ve seen the forms.  You can pick up some additional ones if you want to take it to them.

MS. HAYES:  Yes.  I was also going to ask if that was on line.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, you know, it’s not on line, but we’ll make sure it’s on line next week on the Senate Insurance Committee website.

Thank you.

MS. HAYES:  This is my mother, Charlotte Crandall.  She did lose her home.

MS. CHARLOTTE CRANDALL:  I have a voice.  I’m Charlotte Crandall.  [Laughter.]

MS. HAYES:  I’m sorry.  She settled her case.

SENATOR SPEIER:  She has a voice.  She wants to talk.  [Laughter.]

MS. CRANDALL:  I was insured by Farmers.  I felt like I was extremely underinsured.  I was very devastated to find out in the beginning the length of time that it would take to rebuild.  I had met some people from the north park fire who rented the house next door to us, and I just couldn’t believe that it would take two years to get their house back.  I just, No, no, no.  And then when our house burned, we started going to care meetings, and that’s what he said:  2 or 3 years.  So, Oh no, not us.  Yeah.  It was all of us.  Couldn’t believe that we were paying insurance for all these years and then, when we actually put in a claim, that we were not going to be. . . . gosh, I had one accident in my life.  My car was taken care of immediately.  The same company.  So to have this drawn out like this for the house is counter to what I felt:  These were my friends; I was going to be insured by these companies.  I paid money into this company and expected to be covered.  When I talked with my insurance agent, I thought, Oh, yes, this is plenty of money.  But then, when it came down to replacing the house, it wasn’t even close.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, your home was totally destroyed.

MS. CRANDALL:  To the ground.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And how much were you underinsured?

MS. CRANDALL:  We have settled, and we eventually recovered twice as much as we were insured for.  I was insured for, I think, a total of 220, including A, B, C, D, E coverage, and received. . . . okay, the mind went blank.  Another  185-ish in addition to that.  After the Examination Under Oath, they suddenly. . . . I got a call.  I mean, I called my lawyer to say, Have you heard anything?
And he said, Oh, did you get my package?
Well, no.

He said, Well, probably on your front door step is a lot of checks.  And sure enough, I got home and on my doorstep was an envelope—FedEx—$168,000.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Nobody had to sign for it?

MS. HAYES:  They left it there?

MS. CRANDALL:  No.  The day before they had asked if they could leave it on the doorstep or would I come and get it, and not knowing what it was—it could have been anything, something I ordered.  I didn’t know.  I got a thing saying FedEx tried to deliver this to me, and so, I signed the thing, Yeah, leave it on the doorstep, and the next day I got there and there was $168,000 worth of checks on the doorstep.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, you were represented by a lawyer at this point?

MS. CRANDALL:  Yes.  We had done the Examination Under Oath.  We went back for another bite, a little bit more, and were able to get that money recovered, and then we signed that it would be counterproductive to take it further.  I had put in an RFA to the CDI and have now received back even from them the confirmation that it was all over and done with.  So, now we are to the point of an architect working on the house, of house plans, preparing it for city planning.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, you’re easily another year away.

MS. CRANDALL:  Yes.  One of the things that I am considerably distressed at is the ALE issue.  I had one year of coverage, which has passed.  So, I now am paying a house payment on a house that doesn’t exist.  Full insurance       coverage . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  No.

MS. CRANDALL:  The land is there.

MS. HAYES:  No, but she is paying insurance on . . . 

[Audience interruption—cross-talking.]

MS. CRANDALL:  Neither my mortgage nor my insurance have changed in price.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You all should know this:  As of January 1st of 2005, there will be a change in the law so that if your home is no longer there, the insurance that you will be paying will not be the insurance that you have been paying.  So, it will be discounted to reflect the fact that you are in construction.

MS. HAYES:  Is that retroactive?

SENATOR SPEIER:  It is not retroactive.  It starts January 1st, upon renewal.  But, it was a change that we got through the Legislature this year.  It was a bill by Assemblywoman Kehoe (sic).  Assemblywoman Kehoe (sic) authored that legislation, and it was signed into law.  So, we’re moving incrementally in the right direction.  So, you should all be aware of that.  All of your insurance policies should in fact. . . . you should see steep discounts if your homes were destroyed.
AUDIENCE:  [Inaudible.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  If your policy started in November, my understanding is it would be November of next year.  Mr. Cignarale, is that right?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Yes.  My understanding is it would be upon renewal, the following renewal.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  So, it is upon renewal.

MS. CRANDALL:  My insurance has not changed in the year-and-a-half.  I got my renewal.  They did renew, but my monthly premium has stayed the same since I was covered.

I’m also concerned that. . . . I turned in coverage for personal property     for. . . . I was told by my, not public adjuster, but by my insurance adjuster that I needed to write down the price and the year that I bought every article I could think of.  So, I turned in dozens and dozens of pages.

SENATOR SPEIER:  This is the inventory issue.

MS. CRANDALL:  The inventory.  I figured that I was covered for $59,000.  My house wasn’t big.  It was about a thousand/eleven hundred square feet.  That since it was covered for $59,000, turning in one with a little bit of a cushion would be fine.  So, I turned it in, and I valued it on my spreadsheet at $65,000, which is $6,000 over.  Since I sent it to email, they put it directly into their computer and valuated everything at $81,000 and then promptly wrote me a check for roughly $45,000 because they devalued everything.
SENATOR SPEIER:  The depreciated value, the fair market value.

MS. CRANDALL:  The depreciated value was 54 percent of what was in my house, no matter whether it was a collectible or not.  I had some things that I felt were more valuable as time went by.  That had nothing to do with it.  They just devalued everything, including the house, by considerably more than I felt was fair.

So, those were the issues that I had:  the devaluation and the ALE and the underinsurance.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Can we ask you to fill out one of these forms, if you’re so inclined?

MS. CRANDALL:  Sure.

SENATOR SPEIER:  This is the Authorization and Consent.  It would give us the authorization then to talk directly to your insurer to see if we can evaluate whether or not that was consistent with what . . . 

MS. CRANDALL:  When we were done with the Examination Under Oath, the letter that we got with all the checks in it included more money for the ALE.  What they did is they reevaluated the A coverage, which bumped up everything else.  So, eventually I did get more.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Eventually you did get something more consistent with what the real value was.

MS. CRANDALL:  Yes.  But I had to pull teeth to get it.

MS. HAYES:  It’s issues that everybody is facing, and not everybody was lucky enough to get a lawyer early enough to settle early on.  They’re still facing it.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Well, thank you very much for your testimony.  [Applause.]

MS. HAYES:  Can I also add that I am. . . . just this morning I received from the city planning department, who. . . . the city has been very good with helping us, the San Bernardino city residents.  They put together a rebuilding fact sheet at the end of every month of how many homes have been rebuilt and how many have got. . . . and I put it in that folder.  There were 330 total losses.  The rest of the statistics are already in there.
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you very much.

Sir?

MR. HENRY SCHMIDT:  I’m Henry Schmidt, and I have a very sickening story.

My insurance company is a church-written insurance company.  I’m a Mennonite.  The Mennonites are a close-knit denomination that sticks together.  But this company has headquarters in Ridley, California, and I had my home insured with them for over twenty-five years.  I’ve owned the same home for twenty-nine years.  During that time I have had zero claims.  But I trusted them and felt I was in Mennonite hands, and so I trusted them.  The coverage that I ended up with was about 40 percent or less of what my architect tells me I need to come up with, and that doesn’t even include the architect’s fee.

Anyway, the insurance adjuster, who, in my opinion, is going to go down there—anyway, the insurance adjusters, as I was told by another insurance adjuster, have a system whereby they wear out their customer to break him down, and that happened to me—I broke down.  And when I broke down I telephoned Ridley, California, and I said, I want to speak to your boss.  

So, he said, I am the boss.  

So, I said, I want to speak to your boss.
So, he said, My boss is the chairman of the board of directors of the Mennonite Aid Plan Pacific Coast.
Please do not mistake this Mennonite Aid Plan for the Mennonite Disaster Service that’s doing a wonderful job.  The Mennonite Disaster Service—I know because I’ve been contributing to them—they are Number 1.
But the Mennonite Insurance Service in Ridley is a bunch of crooks, and I am suing them, even though Mennonites are not supposed to sue anybody.  But anyway.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Now, have you filed your lawsuit then?

MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Are you at all interested in trying to negotiate with them?

MR. SCHMIDT:  It’s impossible.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You don’t want us to try?

MR. SCHMIDT:  Try?  I’ve tried.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Do you want the Senate Insurance Committee to attempt to assist?

MR. SCHMIDT:  No.  They will never get anywhere.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Okay.

MR. SCHMIDT:  Because I have been. . . . after I got ahold of the chairman of the board of directors, I found out from this email address that he is a professor at the Mennonite university in Fresno.  I’ve contributed to that university more than I was able to claim for the contents of my home.  So, then they shaped up a little bit for a little while, but now impossible to settle.  They didn’t even try.  I hope they go out of business.  

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you.  [Applause.]

Now we’re going to go through the list of people that have filled out these forms.  We’ll start with Julia Richards.
MS. JULIA RICHARDS:  Good evening.  My name is Julia Richards, and I’d just like to say hello to all my neighbors, if that’s okay.  Hi, guys.
I come here tonight to tell my story.  I want to give you guys just a snapshot of what I’ve been through.  I will tell you up front, I am a State of California employee.

SENATOR SOTO:  That’s good.

MS. RICHARDS:  Yes, that is good.

What I’ve been through is absolutely unimaginable.  I am now in litigation.  Unfortunately, I’ll be taking my deposition before the holidays, so that puts a damper on things; but that’s the way it goes.  Unfortunately, this gentleman said he wasn’t strong enough to go up against these big guys.  I am, and I did.  My insurance company is Allstate.

On the day of the fire, I called them to say I lost my house.  You know, Can you at least give me some information?  I don’t know what to do.  To which they responded, You don’t have a policy with us.  And they hung up the phone.  In the next 72 hours, I received a half a dozen phone calls from all over the United States, from different Allstate agents, telling me again that I don’t have a policy with them.

SENATOR SOTO:  Why would everybody call? 

MS. RICHARDS:  You tell me!  Allstate?  You tell me.  I finally turned off my cell phone in disgust and just threw it in the ashes.

So, I immediately, knowing the state and the policies and procedures you need to go through, started at the bottom.  And I would like to personally thank Dianne Jacob for all her help. [Applause.]  I don’t know if she remembers me, but I was in contact with her office through the whole permit and building process, which I will discuss after I get done with the insurance.  It was a headache, and her office helped me get through it.  I literally went by entry person to their supervisor to their supervisor.  I sent emails.  I asked for help.  I’m not good at doing this, but after the fire that’s all I did:  I asked everybody I could for help.  So, she helped me get through the permit process, but I still had the insurance to deal with.

I immediately called my local agent that I thought I had purchased the policy through and said, Okay, you’re telling me I don’t have it.  I said, I paid it.  Can you provide me some fax confirmation?  Can I stop by and pick up a copy of my file?  You know, Can I do anything?
She said, No.  

And I said, Okay.  I go, Ma’am, you’re denying this for me, and I said, I need the denial in writing.  You at least need to provide me that.
Well, I’ll send it up through my chain of command.

That’s what I got.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You’re telling us that you requested a copy of your policy and she declined to give you a copy?

MS. RICHARDS:  Yes.  I offered to come over to her office the days following the fire to get a copy, because I said, I either need an affirmation I had a policy or a denial in writing.  Give me something, because at this time I’m trying to get FEMA and SBA going.  I don’t know if I have insurance, so I can’t fill out the forms completely.  And don’t think that I got any type of ALE, any nickel, dime, anything, from Allstate.  I begged.  I borrowed.  I didn’t have to steal.  [Applause.]

What I’m trying to explain is this.  It took me six months to get a denial in writing from Allstate.  Six months!  We immediately . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  A denial that you had insurance.

MS. RICHARDS:  A denial; that no policy existed during this time.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  So, what is the status now?  Have they admitted that they have . . . .
MS. RICHARDS:  No.  They sent a twelve-page letter from an attorney’s office in Los Angeles—the lawsuit has now been transferred to San Diego—denying they had a policy with me.  A twelve-page letter and it took six months.

SENATOR SOTO:  [Inaudible.]

MS. RICHARDS:  Ma’am, I have nothing left.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Richards, did you write your premium off of a check?

MS. RICHARDS:  Yes, that was in my house.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, I know, but your bank would have a copy.

MS. RICHARDS:  Yes, and the litigation will get into that.  I don’t have a doubt of that in my mind, ma’am.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, there is, really, no dispute that you had insurance.

MS. RICHARDS:  No.  And that’s for the court of law.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, it doesn’t need to be for the court of law.

MS. RICHARDS:  Well, unfortunately, when they’re not being fair—they’re telling me I have no insurance, they won’t give me a denial, these issues with ALE, which are pennies to big insurance corporations . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, you’ve received no ALE because they’re denying you had coverage.

MS. RICHARDS:  I got nothing.  Nothing!  The only thing that saved me was this.  I called up my mortgage company, and I said, you know, My insurance company is telling me I don’t have insurance.

And they said, Well, that’s illegal.

I go, Well, you tell them that.  I feel like I’m getting pulled in the middle of this.
And they said, If we would have had a notice of cancellation or anything to that effect, we would have made you get insurance.
I’m like, You mean you didn’t get notified either?  And I have it in writing from the mortgage company.

What the mortgage company, which is Washington Mutual, did do is  they gave me a forced-placed insurance policy for structure only, but it gave me somewhere to start.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Were you on an impound account for your homeowners insurance?

MS. RICHARDS:  Yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  This is preposterous.

MS. RICHARDS:  And it went through refi.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Chilgren, are you somewhere where you can have a conversation with Ms. Richards?

MS. RICHARDS:  Oh, it’s beyond that.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, actually, let’s see if . . .

MS. RICHARDS:  Okay, sure.  I’ll engage in this.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right. 
MS. RICHARDS:  I want to tell Ms. Soto I think that emergency response team you mentioned is a fabulous idea.  I work now for the Parks Department, of Recreation, and that would be so helpful in aiding all of our citizens to have a mobile unit that would immediately respond.  Yes, FEMA’s there, yes, the Salvation Army, but they go away in six months.  And for the state to have something would be so beneficial to the citizens.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Anything else, Ms. Richards?

MS. RICHARDS:  If you can read my list.  I get so flustered when I speak.  There were three things I had listed.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You said communication, insurance, San Diego County Planning.

MS. RICHARDS:  Okay, I did that.  Communications.  The other things—and Dianne Jacob, you might be able to better assist us on this—is communications during the fire.  My house was adjacent to the voluntary fire department in Harbison Canyon, across from the helipad, for those people who know that corner.  Okay?  Our boys were already in San Bernardino fighting the fires, so we had people from the south come up, from the different southern San Diego communities.  I was the first one in my neighborhood to evacuate.  They hadn’t even got communication because of the mountains and us not having towers and communication equipment.  I know you’re so familiar with this.  That’s how some of the people, my neighbors, didn’t get out.  I was the first one to leave.  I got on the 8, and they shut it behind me.  That meant there was only one way out of the canyon.  One way!  We need some kind of early warning system.  And then, how after the tragedies occur.
We need to be prepared for these things in the future, and that’s what I hope this accomplishes.  All of us will have our insurance issues and other issues, and we’ll deal with those.  But that’s what I ask you, to be more prepared in the future.  And as a State of California employee, just like you, we always need to strive to be better.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you, Ms. Richards.  Ms. Chilgren is in the back of the room, and Ms. Ryan will help you get connected with her.  And if you would fill out that form, I’d like to pursue your case a little bit.
Thank you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Carl Murray.

Yes.  Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER LA SUER:  I’d like to say a couple of things with regards to the last witness and the problems we’ve had with the insurance companies.  I’ve been speaking with some of those insurance companies, and I’ve talked to them about persons who had their policies.  Policies that were in effect, and that were supposed to go up with the cost of living and raise as time went on.  And the person woke just in time to run out of their house and save their life.  They couldn’t save their policy.  I was told by the insurance company that, Well, gee, they had a fire, in the insurance agent’s office there should be a copy of it.  So, they’re disputing this person’s claim, and the person has no way to actually prove it.  After a rather long conversation, it appeared like he was doing everything he can to keep from paying the claim.

There are over 200 people here tonight.  If the companies were doing their job and paying the policies you paid for, you wouldn’t be here tonight.  [Applause.]

And I can’t stay the whole time.  I just want to say I have talked to so many people.  When their ALE runs out, they don’t have an idea when it’s going to run out because their policy has burned up in a fire.  So, then they’re in a situation where they’re paying house payments on a house that doesn’t exist, insurance on a house that doesn’t exist, plus they’re paying their rent.  They’re shuffling from adjuster to adjuster to adjuster.  Why, if you have an insurance policy with a so-called reputable company, do you need an attorney?  [Applause.]  And it’s about time.
Everybody in here is battling an insurance company that has more money than you can imagine, and it’s your money!  I’ve had maybe four people I’ve talked to that have had real good luck, and they’re not here tonight.  In my opinion, my district, in Harbison Canyon, in Crest, in Pine Valley, in Ramona, and all of my area, my constituents basically have been screwed by the insurance companies.  [Applause.]  And I’ll tell you what.  I checked my insurance policy on my home when the fires were dying down.  If I had one of these cost-of-living policies, I could not have rebuilt my garage.  
And I want to tell you something.  Senator Speier, Senator Morrow, and a few others of us this year are going to. . . . I think there has to be some accountability put on the insurance companies.  [Applause.]

I had gotten to the point in the last year, that I’m so sick and tired of talking to insurance companies that, as far as I’m concerned, could care less.  And I’m saying it because you guys are here.  I want you to hear.  I’m tired of you not caring about the people that pay you money and not paying them back and leaving them in the cold without a home.  [Applause.]  As far as I’m concerned, what you have done to these people is criminal, and you ought to be charged.  I’m sick and tired of it.  And you know what? A time is coming in this state, and there will be a bipartisan effort.  It may be you who have to stand up and be held accountable for what you have not done for people.  And for the people that have written me, they have lost everything they had and have dealt with a bureaucrat that denied they had a policy, refused to send them a copy of their policy, and have done everything they can to outlast them.  And the gentleman that said that they do everything they can to make sure you get nothing, and you just finally go away, I’ve heard that story over and over and over again.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER LA SUER:   Like I say, I can’t stay the whole time.  I just wanted you to know that you are not the only ones we’re hearing because I’ve heard this so many times you can’t believe it.  [Applause.] 

SENATOR SPEIER:  That could have been your opening statement.  [Laughter.]

All right.  Mr. Murray.  Welcome.
MR. CARL MURRAY:  Good evening.  Thank you for having us all here.  My name is Carl Murray, Lakeside area.

I, too, had a lender forced-placed policy like the previous lady that spoke with us.  

SENATOR SPEIER:  But you have a mortgage on your home . . .

MR. MURRAY:  Yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And there’s a dispute now as to whether or not you had homeowners insurance.

MR. MURRAY:  My homeowners was previously cancelled.  I did a little bit of shopping around.  I couldn’t come up with anything.  I was not aware of the Fair Plan.  The lender came in, put a policy on it.  I got it in the mail and said, Okay, well, they’re overcharging me, but I’ve got insurance, and it’s the same amount I had before.  It’s what I thought.  Truth be known, my previous policy had adjustments and replacement clauses and various things which this did not.  The forced policy, which I paid about $1,500 a year for, for a 1,300 square-foot house, had a face value of about $160,000—about one-third of the scope that was done to replace the house.
I had one adjuster come out one time; spent a couple of hours there.  When I did receive their scope, or report, in the mail a couple of months later, it was not accurate to the home.  It was just an out-of-the-box version.  I made repeated calls and letters to get them to adjust it, and I was told, We hit policy limit.  There’s no point in us coming out, Mr. Murray.  Policy limit is policy limit.  I did an RFA to the Insurance commission.  They basically told me the same story.
I’ve talked to attorneys.  I haven’t engaged one yet.  Most of them have better cases than mine, quite honestly.  But about a year later I received no ALE money, not one penny.  I’ve done my own debris removal, and I’m living in a mobile home that I purchased from FEMA.
SENATOR SPEIER:  So, the forced policy that is on. . . . that the mortgage holder put on your property . . .

MR. MURRAY:  Yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  . . . it does not provide ALE?

MR. MURRAY:  That’s correct.  It’s put in place to protect the mortgage company.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Correct.  So, from your perspective now, with 20/20 hindsight, do you believe that there should be some notification when your insurer declines to renew you of the existence of the Fair Plan?

MR. MURRAY:  Yes.  And I’m not sure there wasn’t, quite honestly, because I have nothing to go back and look at.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Let’s find out.  Mr. Cignarale, is there a requirement with an insurer that declines to renew?

MR. CIGNARALE:  There is a statutory requirement when they decline to insure you.  I have to go back to the statute to look at whether if they decline to renew you, that the same would apply.  They are required to give the 800 number of the Fair Plan when they refuse to cover you when you’re a new applicant.
SENATOR SPEIER:  I guess the question then becomes:  If the renewal policy is excessive from the point of view of the homeowner, they will decline to have it renewed, but then, how do they find out about the Fair Plan?  There needs to be some method whereby everyone is informed about the Fair Plan, regardless of renewal or nonrenewal, and I think we’ve got to talk about how we accomplish that.

MR. CIGNARALE:  I would agree.  I’ll verify first that it is in fact a requirement on that issue, and if its not, we’re open to discussion. 

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you.

MR. MURRAY:  Just another moment.  They also delayed paying. . . . didn’t release any debris removal.  I was promised it and didn’t get it, and then, weeks later they said that it would just be included in the one-and-only and final settlement.  That made things real tough in the beginning, trying to clean out enough space to put a trailer.  Just very, very difficult in one way and inflexibility on the part of the insurance company.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And the name of the insurance company?

MR. MURRAY:  Empire Fire, Marine, and Casualty.

SENATOR SPEIER:  I don’t know to what extent we can be helpful in your case, but if you want to fill out that form, we’d be happy to look into it.

MR. MURRAY:  I understand, and I thank you for hearing my story.  [Applause.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  Our next speaker is Brent Nelson.

MR. BRENT NELSON:  Being accused of fraud for asking for your policy doesn’t sound like. . . . and then they say, you know, Just listen to us.  We’ll steer you right through this whole thing.  It’s one thing that happened to me.
SENATOR SPEIER:  So, Mr. Nelson, you had insurance coverage.  You sought to get a copy of your policy and were accused of fraud.  Is that what you’re testifying to?

MR. NELSON:  Well, accused of. . . . well, it was like a “red flag,” they said, anyone who would ask for their policy.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Why wouldn’t everyone ask for their policy if it was burned up?  Why wouldn’t you want to look at it?

MR. NELSON:  Well, I know.  And the guy stood there and he’s, Oh, it’s a red flag if you ask for your policy.  What do you want your policy for?  Just listen to me.  I’ll tell you exactly what you need to know.  
SENATOR SPEIER:  Who’s the insurer?

MR. NELSON:  Allied Insurance.  

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.

MR. NELSON:  Within three weeks after the fire, for my personal property they told me to sign this paper, like at the end of it they had the check, you know, and say, Well, to get this check, you’ve got to sign this paper for your personal property.  Within three weeks.  And they’re saying. . . . they’re trying to settle it all right then.  So, they’re dangling this check in front of you, and you’ve got to sign these papers within three weeks, and you still don’t really know what’s going on.  They’re rushing you through the personal property before you really know what’s going on.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Was this ALE or was this . . .

MR. NELSON:  Personal property.  They rush you right through it like that’s the biggest thing.  They get you to get through your personal property list because you’re going to forget everything.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Did you make a list?

MR. NELSON:  Oh, yeah.  And I’m still making a list.  It goes on the more you remember, and they’re trying to rush you through it and get you to get done with your personal property list before you even really know what’s going on.  And then depreciate it, you know, excessively.  One year for every 10 percent.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, what’s the status of your claim right now?

MR. NELSON:  Well, I got a lawyer, and they tell me they want to do an EUO.  That’s about where I’m at right now.  They want to do an EUO.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Examination Under Oath.

MR. NELSON:  Yes.  And then at ten months—listen to this.  They call me up and say at ten months, after ten months, they want to sit down and talk to me.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, maybe they’ve just “gotten religion,” so to speak.

MR. NELSON:  Okay.  So, they make an appointment and say they’re going to be in town.  Okay?  And then, the day before the meeting, they fax me this thing.  It’s called a “White waiver.”  You know, Take a look at this.  Show it to your lawyer, whoever you got.  Bring it to the meeting, and we can sit down and discuss things.  So, I show up for the meeting.  Nobody there.  Call them up and I’m, What’s going on?  Are you going to make it to the meeting?
Oh, well, you didn’t sign the White waiver.  They’re not going to even show up for the meeting.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And the White waiver is?

MR. NELSON:  Something about some court case.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Hilla?

MR. HILLA:  It’s based on a case called White—I forget the whole name of the case—but the Commissioner’s made it clear to all the insurers that if they’re using the White waiver, they’re doing so at their own risk.  He doesn’t believe it’s proper to do that.  And what it basically does is it’s an agreement not to file a bad faith claim.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Can I just have a show of hands?  How many of you have received the White waiver?  Are you all Allied customers?

AUDIENCE:  No.

SENATOR SOTO:  Basically, it’s a waiver forfeiting your rights.

MR. NELSON:  Yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  To file a bad faith claim.

AUDIENCE:  [Cross-talking.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Anything else you want to tell us, Mr. Nelson?

MR. NELSON:  That’s about it right now.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And you’re kind of inclined to litigate it then?

MR. NELSON:  Well, I don’t know.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.

MR. NELSON:  They sure make it seem that way; that’s the only avenue, you know.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay, Mr. Nelson.  Thank you.  [Applause.]

Mr. Ted Ozorio?

MR. TED OZORIO:  How you doing?

SENATOR SPEIER:  Good evening.

MR. OZORIO:  Well, I just came here just to let you know what happened to me—my story.  I got my insurance five months before the fire.  We changed insurance companies because we didn’t want to be underinsured.  Someone told us, you know, You could be underinsured.  We had just remodeled.  We were doing a lot of remodeling and everything.  We were ready to do add-ons and everything.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, you had remodeled and changed insurance as a result of that.

MR. OZORIO:  Yes.  Because we wanted to make sure we’re not underinsured, and our insurance company kept telling us, Oh, no, you have sufficient amount of money.  They didn’t even want to listen to us, so we went ahead and changed.  We got our insurance five months beforehand with this insurance company.  We even changed over our car insurance with them.

SENATOR SPEIER:  What was the name of the company?

MR. OZORIO:  Allied.

AUDIENCE:  [Booing.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who was your insurer before?

MR. OZORIO:  State Farm.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay.

MR. OZORIO:  Basically, the first letter I received was, You’re underinsured.  I said, You’ve got to be kidding me.  My wife made sure she asked them, you know, Is this sufficient?  Are you sure this is enough?
Oh, yes, no problem.  This is plenty.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Did they come out to the house?

MR. OZORIO:  They did not come out.  We received, I think, a month afterwards, we received a card saying, We’re going to come out and photograph the place.  The place was already burned down.  I said, What are you going to photograph?  It’s amazing.
But also my car.  It was a classic.  We just got done dropping in over $13,000 in the car.  But they said that since it’s a certain kind of car, we could only insure it for $8,000.  No problem.  I said, you know, Well, that’s better than nothing.  I received a check for $5,000, and they said, You can take us to court for the rest.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Ozorio, would you fill out one of those forms to see if we can negotiate with Allied on your behalf?

MR. OZORIO:  Sure.  I also I got an attorney.

SENATOR SPEIER:  With all due respect to all of you who feel that you must have attorneys to represent you, that’s not the way this is supposed to work.  And if we can resolve these without having to go through litigation, you’re all going to be far better off, in my humble opinion.  If it can be, and maybe it can’t.

MR. OZORIO:  I believe they need to pay for more than what our policies are now.  And all my underinsurance, they should pay for the suffering they’re putting my family through.  I mean, right now I’m in boxes, living out of boxes.  You know why?  Because I have to find out by coming to this meeting that I’m going to be getting my ALE extended.  Are you kidding me?  You know half the month went by?  This is incredible.  What have they done?  They kept promising me all the way down to October:  Oh, don’t worry.  We’re going to do something with that ALE.  You guys are a special case.  Why?  Just so I don’t get an attorney on them.  Well, I got an attorney right at the last minute.  And they deserve to pay for this.  It’s incredible what they’ve done to me.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, your issue right now is. . . . they say you’re underinsured by how much?

MR. OZORIO:  First scope of loss was 50 percent underinsured.  That’s incredible.  And while this time goes on that I’m not getting my money to build, everything is going up.  Look at the cost of wood what it went up.  Construction is going up.  It’s amazing.  

MR. PERKINS:  Allied has a 50 percent extension clause anyway, right? and you’re still 50 percent uninsured.  Right?  I mean, even with the 50 percent uninsured, your extension, you’re still underinsured by 50 percent.
MR. OZORIO:  I don’t have a 50 percent extension.

MR. PERKINS:  Oh, you didn’t get the 50 percent extension.

MR. OZORIO:  No.  I don’t have no 50 percent extension.  And then, to top it off, we tried to let them understand.  We’re having county problems right now because a neighbor put a complaint on my property.  Dianne Jacob’s office started helping us out with it, but still, four months have passed.  We’re going into our fifth month.  We couldn’t even build if we wanted to.  Now they’re asking for a permit for my driveway.  Are you kidding me?  My house was built in 1950.  I’ve got people that lived there for thirty years.  I said, That driveway has always been there, and they want me to remove my driveway.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who wants you to remove your driveway?

MR. OZORIO:  The county.  They want me to show them a permit, showing that we have that driveway permitted.  Are you kidding me?  Where am I going to find that permit?  It’s just incredible.  But have they helped?  No, they haven’t helped at all.  They haven’t helped whatsoever.

But one year to build a house?  No way.  You’ve got to be kidding me.  There’s no way, even if I wouldn’t have even run into county problems.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  I think that one of the legislative initiatives that will come out of this is that it will be ALE for one year if it’s an individual loss.  If it’s a state of emergency, ALE would have to be extended for two years.  I think that should be commonplace.

MR. OZORIO:  Yes, I do believe that.

AUDIENCE:  [Cross-talking.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  One at a time.  Let me please ask you to come up and state your case.
Anything else, Mr. Ozorio?

MR. OZORIO:  No.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Let’s see what we can do on your behalf.

MR. OZORIO:  Sure.  You’re Mr. La Suer?  Thank you for all your comments.  They were awesome.  [Applause.]  I believe that he spoke our hearts.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Kellogg?  Paul Kellogg.
MR. PAUL KELLOGG:  I had three rentals in Harrison Park, if you know where that is.  It’s up in Julian.  The whole area there looked like it was hit by a nuclear bomb.
I had Farmers Insurance, and they started out by trying to cheat me out of $35,000 by sending me 22 checks in the mail.  It took me six hours to add them all up and figure out that there was $35,000 missing.  So, anyway, I confronted them about it, and they said that they’d be sending another check; that it probably got lost in the mail.

So, anyway, I got that all squared away.  I settled my insurance myself without getting a lawyer. Of course I had to sign a paper that I couldn’t talk to anybody about it.  So, I’m not going to talk about that.  I can’t talk about it any further.  

What I wanted to talk about with this insurance problem, what needs to be done is the time when you pay your policy, when you pay the money, when you buy your policy, it needs to be spelled out exactly what’s going to happen to you if your house burns down, a complete loss, because there are so many things that can happen.  Like the code upgrades.  You have to pay for all of that.  I had three houses burn down, and I have to get sprinkler systems all put inside them and all this.  I have to pay 25 to 50 thousand dollars out of my own pocket just for these water tanks and these pumps and underground electrical and stuff just for three houses.  So, that needs to be spelled out clearly about code upgrades are not covered.  When it’s a total loss, they’re not going to pay for your cleanup.  They’re not going to pay for your trees or anything like that because it all goes down to policy limits.  That needs to be all clarified.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Are you talking about debris removal?

MR. KELLOGG:  Yeah, debris removal.  When you have a total loss, you don’t get paid for that, for debris removal.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, my understanding is that most policies do cover that.

AUDIENCE:  No.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Does it vary policy to policy?  Yours was with Farmers?  Is Farmers present?

Diane, are you familiar with the Farmers policy enough to be able to comment on debris removal?


MS. DIANE COLBORN:  Diane Colborn, Personal Insurance Federation.  Farmers is a member of our association.  I can’t speak to his particular situation.  My understanding is that debris removal generally is included, but we’d be glad to take the information and get back to the committee or to the gentleman.

MR. KELLOGG:  It would be covered under a partial loss, like if you had a kitchen fire or something like that.  That would be covered under that.  But once your loss hits the policy limit like that, then that’s as far as they will pay.

SENATOR SPEIER:  They’ll just do a policy limit and they won’t provide for debris removal as . . . 

MR. KELLOGG:  Yeah.  If you hit the policy limit, then they don’t pay for debris removal.  It’s all tricky, the whole thing, the way they word all this stuff.  They had me completely confused.  I found out I didn’t know anything about insurance.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Cignarale?

MR. CIGNARALE:  There are some policies that will cover debris removal, but it eats into your policy limits.  Other companies will give you a fixed amount and say 5 percent above your policy limit, separate from policy limits, for debris removal.

SENATOR SPEIER:  From the department’s perspective, because we were looking at a policy that is in fact consumer-friendly, so to speak, most people would think that the cost to rebuild does not include debris removal; that that should be a separate line item, so to speak.
MR. CIGNARALE:  I would agree.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And if it’s not, then it should be spelled out, or there should be a way to have a rider on the policies.  I think what the department is going to have to do is look at these policies, take the feedback that you’re getting from this hearing and the one the Commissioner has had, and we’ve got to simplify these policies and make them understandable so people know precisely what they’re getting.  
I think that rage that you’re hearing here tonight has everything to do with the fact that people did what they thought was responsible—they carried homeowners insurance; they carried fire insurance—and now they’re finding out that what they carried was woefully inadequate to meet the needs of rebuilding their homes.  In fairness to everyone, having the information makes a big difference.  People will pay more if they don’t have what they really need.  The last speaker, Mr. Ozorio, actually changed carriers because he wanted to make sure he wasn’t underinsured.  So, there’s a massive disconnect between what the agent is telling the insured and what the insured believes the policy reflects.

MR. CIGNARALE:  I agree.  What we’ve looked at is the possibility of doing either regulations and/or legislation.  A piece of it can be done through regulation, we believe, at this point, perhaps to provide greater disclosure.  Your actual calculator of what was done, from Marshall Swift or whoever did it and tells you how much you’re going to get basically in the event you have a loss.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, I would suggest to you that the quick quote is the problem in most of these underinsurance cases.  [Applause.]  It’s all about someone trying to use the easy way out.  From what I understand, if you use the program that Marshall and Swift has and go through all the questions—it takes twenty minutes—but for the most part, I’ve been told that in 90 percent of the cases, the insurance coverage that would be provided would be inadequate for the consumer in terms of rebuilding their home.

AUDIENCE:  It’s inadequate.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, if it’s still inadequate, then we need. . . . but I think it’s the department’s responsibility to make sure that every program that’s being used has been certified by the department as being reflective of what is reality.

MR. CIGNARALE:  We recognize this as a result of the hearing that we held last month.  We are preparing regulations and perhaps approaching the Legislature with legislation. 
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  I’m sorry, Mr. Kellogg.

Senator Soto?

SENATOR SOTO:  Thank you. 

I just think that most of us are not experienced in legalese.  They tell us about it, and then they write in all this tiny print that they know it’s going to take you forever to read.  And if you do read it, you don’t understand most of it.  I think that we ought to do some legislation, Senator Speier, where these “policies” and these “procedures” are simple enough so that the average person who’s not involved in reading legal stuff can understand it.  And I think that most of the problem is that we don’t understand what we’re finding most of the time.  We take the person’s word who’s selling us the policy.  And they’re the experts, and you believe them.  And then what happens, whenever it comes time to pay:  Well, the policy says that.  You were supposed to have read it.  In my experience, I cannot understand those things, and I’m involved in legislation.  I can imagine what it’s like when somebody isn’t.

So, I believe there has to be some legislation where we require these people to make their policies and the wording understandable for the average person to be able to read it and understand it.  Otherwise, we’re going to have this kind of situation forever.  So, I’m ready to do some legislation.  [Applause.] 

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Kellogg?

MR. KELLOGG:  Yes, just one more thing I almost forgot about.  When you pay for your fire insurance policy, you should get a receipt that says exactly how many square feet that your home is being insured for, because one of my policies, they went and they shaved down the square footage on there so that I would pay the premium and not shop around and walk out of that office thinking that I was 100 percent insured.  When the house burned down, I found out that they had put 400 square feet instead of 600 square feet on my policy.  And that’s not right.  There needs to be a law that says that they need to put the square footage clearly on your receipt.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Kellogg, are you saying that you informed the insurance agent that you had 600 square feet, but they put 400 square feet down?

MR. KELLOGG:  Yes, he sure did.  And the application that he wrote that on—they don’t give a copy of that to the person buying the insurance.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You get a declaration in the mail subsequently.

MR. KELLOGG:  Yes, your declaration in the mail, your policy and all that.  Nowhere on it does it tell the square footage of that home.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Is that true, Mr. Cignarale?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Yes, it’s true.  We attempted to get that placed as a requirement in the Alpert bill, SB 1855, this year, but it didn’t make it through the final version.
SENATOR SPEIER:  And that was because the insurance industry opposed it?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Colborn, would you like to come forward?  Maybe we should try Mr. Fuller, just to kind of share the wealth-- why you opposed it.
Thank you, Mr. Kellogg.  [Applause.]

MS. COLBORN:  Diane Colborn again for the Personal Insurance Federation.
As I recall, it wasn’t the issue in question with that particular provision.  Mr. Perkins will also remember when we worked on this, it did not have to do with just putting the square foot of the home that was being insured.  They wanted it to calculate what the cost per square foot would be that was being insured and put that on the dec page.  What we negotiated, what the bill ended up saying was that. . . . and I don’t remember the exact disclosure language that was put into the bill.  We didn’t oppose the bill in its final language, and it does require that the wording be changed and additional clarifications.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Why do you oppose putting in the square footage?

MS. COLBORN:  Well, one of the problems is that I think the square  footage. . . . the information that is provided by the policyholder is what the company is going on, and if there is improvements made to the home or remodeling that are done, all that needs to be shared with the company.  And it’s not just a matter of simply taking the square footage and calculating the cost per square footage.  It has to do with the type of construction, countertops that they have, different things that might go into calculating what the replacement cost is.  I think what the Legislature ended up doing was putting language in there that clearly disclosed, and it’s part of the homeowners bill of rights that the Commissioner supported, too, in the Alpert bill; that clearly, puts them on notice that it’s very important that they make sure that the amount of coverage that they’re purchasing is going to be adequate to cover the replacement costs of the policy and even encourages them to look at even an independent estimate of that.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, Ms. Colborn, I think what happens is the insured believes that the insurance company has the expertise, not the insured.  [Applause.]

So, my question to you is this:  For high-end homes, I know that the insurance company won’t take the word of the insured.  They will come out.  They will measure the home.  They will determine whether or not their countertops are granite or not granite.  They take pictures of everything.  So, on high-end homes they do that, and they just factor that in to what the policy premium is.  The question I have for you on behalf of PIF is this:  If the insured feels inadequate to make the determination as to what their square footage is or whether or not they have proper insurance, if they sought to have the insurance company come out and do an estimate—actually do the square footage, assess what the actual cost to replace that home would be—and you charged for that, would you have an objection to that?
MS. COLBORN:  I think we need to look at the details of that, because again, I think it’s a matter of the policyholder and the insurance company working together on that.  In some cases, a home inspection is going to be inappropriate.  In other cases, the policyholder is the one that has the best information about the home.  And it’s the policyholder, really, that ultimately is going to make the decision about how much coverage they want to purchase.

SENATOR SPEIER:  The policyholder, for the most part, is coming to the insurance company because they want to have adequate insurance to cover them in case of a catastrophic circumstance.  And if, in fact, this is supposed to be your agent—we talk about the insurance agents as being an agent of the insured—well, arguably, it’s really an agent of the insurance company—but I think we ought to put our heads together and create some options for the homeowner.  And if it’s going to cost them “X” number of dollars more to have that onsite inspection but gives them a peace of mind in knowing that they’re going to have replacement coverage, then so be it.  And if they want to take the estimate from Marshall & Swift, so be it.  But people should not ever be in the situation of being underinsured unknowingly.

MS. COLBORN:  And we agree with the concept of full disclosure, and we agree with the goal of having people fully insured.  And I think that in some cases, people will make different decisions.  Sometimes it’s a cost issue on the front end, where people choose not to purchase more coverage.

SENATOR SPEIER:  As long as they make the decision.

MS. COLBORN:  That’s right.

SENATOR SPEIER:  We cannot presume, and it’s wrong for any insurance company to presume, that the insured has the information.  [Applause.]  We are not contractors.  Most of us have no clue, and we are relying on our insurance agent and oftentimes may argue even that we have too much insurance because the premium is so high.  

MS. COLBORN:  And that does happen.

SENATOR SPEIER:  But as long as the insured then knows that they are making a proactive decision to be underinsured.  Most of these people here who are suffering from underinsurance did not volitionally become underinsured.

MS. COLBORN:  Also, I think it’s important to say, and then I’ll let Jeff speak, that it’s also important that people keep their policies updated, because in some cases, I know we had some people testify that they purchased their houses very recently.  I don’t say that in every case, but we have had examples where people did remodeling or maybe additions to the home and they didn’t inform the company about those changes.  And so, it’s important that the policy get updated.  We want to have it accurate at the time that the policy is issued, and then it needs to be kept updated also.
Jeff, maybe you can speak also to that.

MR. JEFF FULLER:  Jeff Fuller with the Association of California Insurance Companies.
That’s right about the square footage.  We thought it could actually be misleading because it is only one of a whole variety of factors that anyone has to look at in determining the valuation of a home.  So, the square footage is often not even the most important factor.  So, I think that’s important.

And the other thing I think . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, what is the most important factor then?

MR. FULLER:  Well, there’s all kinds of factors that go into the value of the house and the amount of funds that are necessary to rebuild that house.  Our companies—and I’ve gone through this process with several—make a conscientious effort at the time of the application to assess and give the consumer  the use of Marshall & Swift, and they’re trying to assess what it’s going to cost to rebuild that house.  They’re not right all the time, and we’ve had companies, as you know, that have been sued for underinsurance.  They’ve been sued for overinsurance because it’s not a perfect science predicting the future.  So, that’s what they try to do, and they try to reach a good faith. . . . they’re working in good faith, both the buyer and the seller, trying to accomplish what the value is, because it does the insurance company no good to sell a policy that’s underinsured.  They do not do that.

AUDIENCE:  [Outcry.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  Please.

MR. FULLER:  Because overall, they have their rating plan.  They know what the losses are, and those losses are factored to the premium structure.  So, they are better off selling insurance with value.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Colborn and Mr. Fuller, I think you both can hear the anxiety and frustration in this room.  I think we’re all going to have to put our heads together.  You’re going to have to go back to your clients and talk to them about how do we more accurately provide insureds with the kinds of coverage that will not create an environment where there is so much underinsurance.

MS. COLBORN:  We’re certainly willing and will continue to work with you on that.  We’d also point out that, as you know, there were a number of bills that were passed this year which have not taken effect.  I think we need to go back and look at those, too, and see how. . . . if those changes are implemented, I think we’ll find that we’ve solved some of the problems—maybe not all of them—that we should continue to work on.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right, thank you.

Patricia Schaniel?

MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  I’m sorry, just one comment . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  Are you Patricia Schaniel?

MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  No, I’m . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  Then you’re going to have to wait.  I’m sorry.

MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  But that was the price basis for insurance.  Most of the policies sitting here, prior to the fire was 80 to 90 dollars a square foot.  We all know after the fact that it’s minimum 150.  It’s for mid-range, so for high its up to 200.  So, they’re saying that . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you.

MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  I mean, there’s a problem there.  That’s why we’re here.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Patricia Schaniel?

MS. PATRICIA SCHANIEL:  Yes.  My name is Patricia Schaniel.  I inherited this problem because my mom passed away this year.  She was affected by the Crest fire.  We have issues with her being so sick with terminal cancer and being on morphine, that she didn’t pursue the claim she needed to pursue and didn’t understand what the damage to her house was, and I’m just now just finding out what that is, like electrical arcing from fuse boxes and all kinds of fun stuff that we’ll be having to take care of.  I hope I can get it done, even though it’s this late date.  But she was on morphine.  I mean, she didn’t know what was happening.
But as part of this process and as trustee of her property, or the property now, I tried to update our insurance with Allstate last week.  Actually, I’ve been working on it for about three weeks.  I called them and I said, I’m sorry, but the declarations page which lists everything is wrong.  The house was built in 1952, not 1949.  It’s [this many] square feet.  You’ve got the construction wrong.  You’ve got one percent hardwood floors, but that doesn’t even mathematically compute based on the square footage and room size that you’re looking at, and there’s hardwood floors underneath all the carpeting in the entire house.

So, I had all of that updated, or I tried to, and I wanted to increase the insurance to a measly $200,000, but they wouldn’t let me because they said that based on the square footage of the house, it would cost $163,000 to insure, not $200,000.  And they wouldn’t even let me.  I called them again last week, and I said, I don’t care.  I know what it costs—my dad was a contractor—I know what it costs to build a house.  Two hundred thousand isn’t adequate to replace this house if it burns down.  It almost did.  We did have part of the house roof burnt.  You know, other parts of the house did burn.  The whole thing wasn’t a total loss.  But they won’t let you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Ms. Chilgren from Allstate is in the back of the room.  If you will go talk with her, I think we can get your coverage up to $200,000.  And fill out that form because we’ll pursue it as well.

MS. SCHANIEL:  But they’re sitting here telling you . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, that’s part of what . . .

MS. SCHANIEL:  . . . that people are, you know. . . . they’re not letting them be correctly insured even when they request it.  [Applause.]  And our house is paid for, so it’s not a mortgage issue.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.

Dave Davies.

MR. DAVE DAVIES:  I want to thank you for coming out and listening to story after story.
I’m not unique—apparently.  I, too, decided that my wife and I wanted to get a policy.  We added a barn onto our property, and they told us from that point on, You will need to get a different policy.  They told us we had to go get a new insurance company; so we did four months before the fire.  Four months before the fire.

I’m tired of hearing this routine of, Oh, if they would have just kept their policies up to date, they would have been insured.  Baloney.  We told them how much our insurance company. . . . how much the previous company had insured us for.  My wife said, Well, shouldn’t it go up?  We’re changing policies, and it’s been several years.  Shouldn’t it go up?

Oh, no, Mr. Davies.  Fully covered.  You’ve got plenty of insurance.  No problem at all.
I’m two-and-a-half times underinsured.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who is your insurance with?

MR. DAVIES:  Clarendon National.  And yes, we hit that policy limit the first day he walked out.  The claims adjuster came out, walked up, and said, Oh yeah, you hit the policy limit.  Don’t worry about it, Mr. Davies, you’re fine.
I said, Well, fine.  Wait a second, you didn’t calculate foundation.  You didn’t calculate removal.  You didn’t calculate all the items in the house.  You didn’t calculate anything.

Oh, we can’t calculate that because you’ve already hit the policy limit, Mr. Davies.  It’s all done.  We’ll depreciate the house and give you a check.  And when you rebuild, we’ll give you a new one.
We’re going, What?  You didn’t calculate everything.  This is not right.  We are insured.  According to our policy, replacement cost.
I don’t know about you, but I thought I understood what “replacement cost” meant, only to come to find out that. . . . oh, by the way, the insurance companies have numerous names: guaranteed replacement costs, replacement costs, sort of replacement costs, replacement costs plus, replacement….
Thank you for AAA.  I will put a plug in for them.  My cousin was insured through them.  She’s done.  She’s finished.  They negotiated.  They went through the whole thing.  She got a decent settlement.  She’s okay.

I don’t hear that word in any of the other insurance companies.  Okay?  AAA won’t cover our area, thank you very much.

Anyway, if we go through this whole routine over and over again, what I keep hearing in this is they don’t want to put square footage on it, but that’s the first thing they start with.  It’s the first thing they start doing calculations on and then come back, and after you figure out that you’re underinsured, then they tell you they hit the limit and, Sorry, there’s nothing else you can do.  

We walked around in circles with our adjuster, saying, Well, wait a second.  The broker said that we’re covered.  The insurance claim guy—whatever his name is, the adjuster—stopped at the policy limit and didn’t calculate any further.
Because there’s no need to.

Then he came back and said I was fully covered because I only went to the policy limit.  But that’s the dog chasing the tail.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Right.  Well, you will be glad to know, although belatedly, that one of the bills that was signed into law that will take effect January 1st changes the terminology of “replacement” to “limited replacement.”  So, it’s going to trigger in the insured’s mind this is limited replacement; what’s it going to take to really replace my home?  That doesn’t help you, and it doesn’t resolve the issues for everyone in this room.

But, Mr. Cignarale, there’s something fundamentally wrong with an insurance company that four months before the fire insures a home and underinsures it by two-and-a-half times.  What powers does the Insurance Commissioner have under those circumstances?

MR. CIGNARALE:  I agree that’s a problem, and this is a real factual issue to look at.  The ones we were able to resolve, 50-or-so out of the 300-plus, we actually did find errors on the part of the company or the agent.  Absent those errors, based on our legal analysis, we don’t feel we have the legislative authority to just place the onus on the insurance company that the amount. . . . even if there were no errors, given that there’s no errors, the insurance company is on the hook for amounts above policy limits, unless there’s what’s called a “special relationship” created, and that’s based on a case that requires a special relationship to be created in order for the insurance company to be on the hook—the number they gave to insure you for.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Is there any negligence that would accrue to an insurance company and/or agent who uses a quick quote, which is specified in the manual that it should not be used to determine the actual premium to be charged?

MR. CIGNARALE:  I suggest yes, and those were some of the cases that we were able to resolve and get reformations on those contracts.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Davies, have you filed an RFA?

MR. DAVIES:  Yes, we did, and the State Commissioner actually did us a good favor by finding out that both our insurance agent and the broker was not licensed to do business in California.

SENATOR SPEIER:  How come we didn’t know that before?

MR. CIGNARALE:  I’m not sure.  I’d have to look at his particular case.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Because they’re not licensed to do business in California, we have no jurisdiction over them?

MR. CIGNARALE:  It’s more limited.  If it was perhaps. . . . well, if it was sold fraudulently unlicensed, then it would be more of a criminal action.  If it was sold through a surplus lines broker and they weren’t admitted in California, they may have been operating legally, but it could have been a surplus lines coverage.
MR. DAVIES:  The insurance company is licensed to insure.  The agent and the broker in which we had bought through was not licensed to do business.  And the State Commissioner’s office basically said they don’t really know if they have any legislative teeth to go after them for the infraction.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Mr. Davies, your case begs for our intervention, so would you fill out that form for us?  [Applause.]  

MR. DAVIES:  I’d like to add one more thing, and that was in the beginning of the policy.  Thank you for George Kehrer.  [Applause.]  Our house burned down, and so, our policy went with it.  So, we asked for a copy of the policy, and unbeknownst to us they sent it to us:  Here’s your policy, Mr. Davies.  Have a nice day.  Thank you.  Great, I got my policy.
After months of believing I had the policy, I went to George.  He evaluated it and said, This is not a policy.  This is only the declarations page.  They did not give you the policy.  Only to come to find out that, yeah, they didn’t give me the policy.  So, I didn’t know.  I had lots of things.  They didn’t cover the rubbish removal.  They didn’t cover any of those things.  They said they didn’t cover those kinds of things.  Well, George told us, That’s not true; you can find it in your policy.  We looked it up, and then we got on their case and said, Wait a second.  This is ridiculous.  It’s been eight months and you didn’t send us the policy when you said you would.  They sent it right out to us finally, once I got a lawyer, and at that point we started to look at the situation and found out that, yes, in fact we did have rubbish coverage, and they’ve now said, Well, yeah, it’s true you do, but we’re going to deduct it off your personal items until you give us the list.  I still have not gotten that coverage.  I got one check once, and that was for the amount of $10,000 for ALE, and I’ve never seen a check since.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, Clarendon is admitted in California, had an unlicensed broker and agent working for them, because they’re obviously paying, at least partially, on the policy.

Mr. Cignarale, why don’t we put every policy on the web?

MR. CIGNARALE:  The policy only?

SENATOR SPEIER:  I mean, they will be different, but then, when a consumer calls, the insurance company can say, Well, go onto the Department of Insurance website, and it’s number 123.
MR. CIGNARALE:  That would be an undertaking in the sense that there are thousands of forms and thousands of endorsements to those forms, so . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  I understand that, but that’s a matter of scanning it into a computer and then putting it on line.

MR. CIGNARALE:  Sure.  Perhaps if that were the direction we would       go.  I mean, it might be in addition to streamlining the number of forms that do exist in some fashion either through a more standardized policy form so that there are less differences.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay.  Well, I think you need to think about that.

MR. DAVIES:  Could I cover one thing on the Fair Plan?

SENATOR SPEIER:  Yes, one thing on the Fair Plan.

MR. DAVIES:  We did apply for Fair Plan.  Our home burned down, but our barn did not burn down.  And some of the ancillary outbuildings did not burn down also, so we’re living on the property in trailers.  So, we asked to get insurance.  We’ve been canceled by the previous—excuse me—nonrenewed—I’ve got to get this term right—nonrenewed.  They were allowed to do that because they pulled out of California completely.  And so, we’ve been trying to get insurance, and we’ve been turned down in every case.  So, we went to the Fair Plan, and they said they wouldn’t insure us because we didn’t have a home on the property, even though we have buildings.  So, then one of the agents came back and said, Well, if you’ll put it on the trailer that you are living in as your home, put it on that, then we’ll insure the rest of the buildings.  So, we did.  We reapplied; put it through that method.  A gentleman came out while I was gone and asked my father, Where’s the house?  I need to take pictures of it for the California Fair Plan.
The response was:  Well, the house burned down, but they’re living in the trailer there.

I can’t take a picture of that.  I have to take a picture of the house.  There’s no house.  Trailer/house/trailer, end of discussion.  He took a picture of the vacant lot and drove away.  
Three days later I got a notice that they were coming out to take a picture.  Okay?  In which case, subsequently after that, they canceled and said, You don’t have a home.  Sorry, we can’t insure you.
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Fill out the form about the Fair Plan.

Thank you, Mr. Davies.  [Applause.]

Jim McDonald.

We’re going to try and ask you to be succinct.  We want to hear your cases, but we want to be out of here by midnight.  
MR. JIM McDONALD:  Well, my insurance company didn’t leave California.  It’s still here.  
One of my biggest concerns was ALE, and I guess you answered that a little bit because I’m with Allied Insurance, and they have decided to extend the ALE now that it’s already been two weeks into November and our ALE ended in October.  
We had asked our insurance company in January about extending ALE.  I wrote a letter in March to them.  They responded in letter form in April, and in that letter they responded, it gave the indication that the ALE would be extended in May—May 20th.  Our eleventh baby was three days old when our adjuster came to our home and told us, What are you going to do come November when you’re family’s out on the street?  And so, I appealed to the office manager and Allied again, asking for the ALE extension in May.  He also came out with their preferred contractor’s estimate of what it would cost to rebuild my home and said it was a poor estimate; it was way too high; to go get another estimate; find somebody that could build my house cheaper.
SENATOR SPEIER:  What was the cost per square foot?

MR. McDONALD:  The cost per square foot from their preferred contractor was $179 a square foot.

SENATOR SPEIER:  From their preferred contractor.

MR. McDONALD:  From their contractor that they hired to tell us what it would cost to replace our home.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And they said that that was too high; go get another one.

MR. McDONALD:  Yes.  He said it was too high; go get another estimate.  So, we went ahead and got another estimate.  That estimate was much more expensive than the prior estimate because building costs had gone up quite a bit more by July, when the next contractor gave us the estimate.  So, I appealed to my company about the ALE again, asking if they would extend that because of the situation.  It took them seven months to come out and tell us that their preferred contractor’s estimate was a bad estimate.  
On September 26th I came home from Washington.  I had gone to my nephew’s funeral, who was killed in Iraq, and I found a letter in the mailbox saying that my ALE would not be extended.  So, my wife and children—eight of my children still live at home with us—we had to move a few weeks ago because our ALE had been canceled on us.  Between the house payment I make on the hole in the ground up in Crest and the rent that I pay now, that’s my monthly income.  So, my whole monthly income is going towards rent and the hole in the ground for my house payment up in Crest.

One of the things when I had contacted the Insurance Commissioner’s office and actually went up to their office in Los Angeles, one of the things that has bothered me through this whole process is a thing that should seem very simple, and that was that the insurance company occasionally would send letters to the home that we were renting, but oftentimes the letters would be addressed to our home up in Crest that had been destroyed.  My insurance company knew where I was living.  They helped me rent that house back in November of last year, but they continued to send me letters to the home that was destroyed.  So, when I went to the Insurance Commissioner’s office—that was one of the RFAs; one of the many RFAs that I sent to the Insurance Commissioner—and spoke when I went up there to Los Angeles, they said, Allied sent a response saying, ‘Don’t worry about that.  We will not be sending you letters to that address anymore.’  
I have a certified letter here dated September 21st that was scratched out because it was sent back to Allied, and then they put the address of where I lived for the first nine days after the fire—one of my daughter’s homes.  I also received a postcard dated September 29th, mailed to my address.  It was important information regarding my homeowners policy.  It says that their rapid response team would be coming to my house to take a look at my house up in Crest; that there would be a knock at my door.  That they would be reevaluating my insurance and would be measuring my foundation. . . .  or be measuring my home in that.

But it’s just been a real discouraging time this year in trying to deal with this insurance company—Allied Insurance.  I, like many, many others that have Allied Insurance, have gone ahead and hired an attorney.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. McDonald.

MR. MCDONALD:  Thank you.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  We would like to ask you, if you could, keep your comments to five minutes.  That would mean we would be here for another two hours.  We will stay here until eleven-thirty, and we want to hear from all of you.

So, Bob Ilko.  [Applause.]  And while Bob is coming up, will Julie Tunnell be prepared to speak next?
MR. BOB ILKO:  Good evening, Senators.  Thank you for coming to San Diego.  
I did not lose my house.  I have never had a claim on my house.  I’ve been a volunteer to help the Scripps Ranch area recover.  I’ve also helped out in Tierra Santa and provided whatever assistance to Ramona and Poway, as well as the East County.


We’re here to talk about solutions, and we talk about solutions post-disaster.  Really, solutions should be pre-disaster.  The underinsurance is not something new.  We knew that in Oakland Hills, Laguna Hills, Pasadena, and Harmony Grove.  

Policyholders justifiably rely on representations, as you’ve said; that their policy limits are sufficient, and they’re sufficient to replace with like kind and like quality the house that they have.  Homeowners are not in the position to know the cost of rebuilding.  

Insurance companies buy and sell policies every day.  They have the ability to evaluate and settle claims every day.  The insurance companies have all the computer resources and actuaries to know how much policies should be and shouldn’t be.  They build a reasonable expectation in the homeowner to rely, to their detriment, as to how much insurance policies should be.  

There is a disconnect, a clear disconnect, between selling a policy and handling a claim for loss.  The insurance companies seek to make it as efficient, as time sensitive as possible, to sell the policy.  But when it comes to handling a claim, it’s up to the homeowner to press the issue and get the claim resolved.

The use of the QuickQuote shortcuts has been a problem in calculating policy limits because it’s misleading and it’s detrimental to the homeowner.  Marshall and Swift has since instructed its users not to use the QuickQuote because there is overwhelming evidence that 64 percent of the insureds in the U.S. are underinsured by at least a third.  I have read, since December 2003 that number is down to 61 percent.  You’re still talking a significant amount of people.  Using the computer software programs can properly yield a much more accurate cost to replace a structure.

What can be done?  How do you check the free market with government intervention and with the consumer rights versus the free market system?  That is a political issue.  We must advance the public policy of promoting fairness as much as we can.  We can do this by requiring higher ethical standards for insurance agents and brokers.  We can incentify insureds not to rely on the stock market for their financial well-being; specify minimums for calculating how limits can be determined, such as requiring the homeowners to fill out questionnaires that are signed under penalty of perjury.  

Another pre-disaster solution is to have claims handling problems that would be different when there’s a complete loss versus a partial.  When there is a complete loss, there should be a longer ALE period.  There should be a streamlined personal property inventory process.  There should be a full disclosure of the cost to repair estimates—these scopes of losses that everybody has looked at and done.  But there should be full disclosure by both parties.

The computer software program has assumptions and parameters which should be printed out and given to the homeowner so the homeowner can also reproduce that same amount to look at and verify the amount of the scope of loss.  By doing so, we will know whether the profit and overhead was calculated properly or not.  We should be able to look at it and get man-hours, unit prices, square footages, linear footages.  Waste should be included.  How you can build a house and have 14.32 feet in a room of molding is impossible.  You don’t buy it by that.  You buy it by 16 or 18 or 20 or 24-foot.  They are pricing these things to exact amounts, which is impossible to build.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Ilko, could you complete your comments?

MR. ILKO:  Yes, I’m sorry.  Another solution would be to require at the close of escrow, when somebody is buying a home, that an independent inventory of the structure be completed.  And this would be a conclusive document until amended by the homeowner as to the square footages, the building components.  And this would not be paid by the insurance company, but by the homeowner, so that it would have some reliability and credibility with the insurance company at a later date.

There should be a disclosure statement when the claims adjuster is switched from one to another.  It should say, I’m your adjuster from [this period] to [this period], and then [the next person] will be here.  And then again, that document would flow.  You have seen anywhere from three to twenty different adjusters on a claim.  That can happen.  But because some of them send letters, some don’t, there should be a disclosure as to who is on the claim and who is off the claim.

Another solution—I’m almost done—would be to codify the statute of limitations issues.  You have breach of contract; you have issues of ALE; dwelling coverage.  When a denial letter is a game with the insurance companies, it should be codified and made clear in English, perfectly understood.  At the last minute, companies are refusing to identify whether or not the claim is completely closed or not, and whether or not the period of time that the claim is opened, does that satisfy the statute of limitations in tolling?

If I had a crystal ball for 2005, the likely issue would be non-renewals, and the non-renewals is really an arbitrary brush reduction issue.

We have had homes that survived the Cedar Fire that should be renewed because, in fact, they survived the fire.  They have the setbacks.  They have the brush management.  I know of a one-and-a-half-million-dollar house with a homeowners-managed HOA brush management has to go to the Fair Plan.  That’s unbelievable—no claims and going to the Fair Plan.

I had a sixty-eight-year-old woman who went uninsured for weeks because she could not clear 200 feet behind her condominium.  This is just not acceptable.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Mr. Ilko, I’m sorry, I’m going to have to go on.

MR. ILKO:  I appreciate it.  Thank you very much.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Are you a lawyer representing clients?

MR. ILKO:  I do have one against Travelers Insurance, but not in terms of the underinsurance issues.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, most of your comments are purely from being a volunteer.

MR. ILKO:  Most of my comments are myself as a volunteer with the Scripps Ranch Association and not professionally as an attorney.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you very much.  [Applause.]

Julie Tunnell.  Karen Reimus is after Julie Tunnell.  Karen, if you would move forward so you can be prepared. 

MS. JULIE TUNNELL:  Senator Speier, thank you for being here.  It is very encouraging to see you and to see you encouraging those of us affected by these devastating fires, but worse, devastation with the insurance companies—trying to work things out and fill out forms.  I don’t think any of us wanted to be in litigation or having to seek attorneys.  

I will say I’m a fire survivor in Scripps Ranch.  We lost our home.  I’m with many State Farm Insurance policyholders who are underinsured.  

I brought with me something—that 20/20 hindsight you mentioned.  This sign belongs to my best friend, and people who have AAA don’t need to be here.  They haven’t needed to be at insurance meetings for this whole year.  They’ve been getting on with their lives, and they have been rebuilding.
My insurance doesn’t put a sign in my front yard because it would have to say, “Underinsured by State Farm.”  [Applause.]

At this point I’ve had to retain an attorney, and he has expressly asked that I not speak about any specifics because of my having to retain the attorney.  But I would like to comment on the epidemic of underinsurance with State Farm.


SENATOR SPEIER:  How far are you underinsured?

MS. TUNNELL:  We had a 1,738-square-foot home.  State Farm’s own contractor estimated that it would cost $181 a square foot.  We were insured at $105.  So, right off the bat we were $138,000 short.  That also affects our contents, our landscaping, our other structures.  So, we’re about $300,000 in the hole of what’s been burned up.
I feel grateful that we have good enough credit to go into debt to build a home.  I’m hearing from many people who are having to wait and live in trailers, which is deplorable.  And that’s why I’m here tonight speaking against the wishes of my attorney, because something needs to happen in the future.  
We should not be here tonight.  This happened in Laguna Hills.  This happened in Oakland.  This happened in the Northridge Earthquake.  We should not be here tonight.  I am unknowingly underinsured, like the people in this room.  I did not intentionally underinsure myself, nor did the residents of Scripps Ranch, that I have spoken with, with State Farm.  It doesn’t matter who our State Farm agent was.  It doesn’t matter when we purchased our policy.  We are all underinsured.  Why?  Why is that?

I welcome any opportunity that you might be able to create for me to end this acid in my stomach, because I need to move on with my life.  So many people give up.  But $300,000 is a lot to give up on.  So, I will continue to try to hope that State Farm will do the right thing. 
AAA started things right after the fire by doing the right thing for their policyholders.  USAA soon followed suit.  Farmers stepped up with Insurance Commissioner Garamendi, and they started to work with their policyholders.

Tonight you reported some success with Allied extending ALE.  I am asking that State Farm step up to the plate and work with their underinsured policyholders.  Let’s settle our claims.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Ms. Tunnell, thank you.  You’ve been articulate in your comments.  Fill out the form, and let’s see if we can help you.

MS. TUNNELL:  Thank you.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  The representative from Southern California Auto, I saw her earlier.  Could you just come up for a moment and speak to us about what you have paid per square foot for your insureds?  Part of this issue is that of supply and demand, and when there is a devastating event, the cost to rebuild must go up.

MS. ALICE BISNO:  Senator, I’m not sure I can answer that.  I mean, there’s an average cost per square foot.  Frankly, it varies between San Bernardino and San Diego County, and it varies from house to house.
Our situation is clearly unique, and I appreciate the comments of all of the folks who have spoken.  But I will tell you, our policyholders were not lucky.  They got what they paid for.  It’s the nature of our policy, which is somewhat unique.  It is a guaranteed replacement cost policy, and it means what it says.  We guarantee to replace the house in the event that it is destroyed.

I’ll tell you a similar problem to what the other insurers had.  None of the homes that were lost in the fire were underinsured, but most of them were undervalued.  We have some similar issues in terms of trying to assess what the replacement cost of the policy is.  
We have just gone through an extensive process with all of our existing homeowners policies and each new policy that comes to us, to try to make sure that we have an adequate amount to cover the house.  And it’s critical for us because we’re the ones who eat that loss.  I mean, it’s important, obviously, for the homeowner to be insured, but for our policyholders, the risk is really not on them; it is on us.
We use Marshall Swift/Boeckh, as you have heard.  Our agents are not allowed to use the QuickQuote.  If they do use the QuickQuote, it gets kicked back when it hits an underwriter.  It is simply not adequate information.  [Applause.]  But it’s a labor-intensive process.  It involves a certain amount of time on the part of our insureds, and it involves a certain amount of time on the part of our agents.  We ask a lot of questions.  I mean, we want to know if it’s got a hardwood floor.  We want to know if it’s covered with carpet.  We want to know if the carpet is wool or if the carpet is acrylic.  We want to know if the bathroom is a custom bathroom.  We want to know if it’s a track bathroom.  It’s not just the square footage; it’s not just the number of bedrooms you might have.  It is:  What is that house like?  What is in it? So that we know what it’s going to cost to replace it.

We are going through that process right now.  We are hopeful that what we’ve learned from the fires, what we’ve learned from our claims people in the course of other disasters that we’ve had—single-home disasters—that we’ve got a more accurate process.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Can you give us a ballpark of what you’re paying per square foot?

MS. BISNO:  I think it’s roughly $150 per square foot.  But again, that’s an average, and it doesn’t necessarily reflect.  In Scripps Ranch we had custom homes that were up to a million dollars to replace.  We had much smaller homes in other areas.  I mean, I can give you a number, but here again I don’t know how helpful that number is.

SENATOR SPEIER:  When you say that homes were not underinsured, they were undervalued, would you define that for us?

MS. BISNO:  It means that the amount stated on the policy, the amount for which our policyholder paid a premium, was not what it actually took to rebuild the house.  But because it was a guaranteed replacement cost policy, if it was short $100,000, if it was short $200,000, we pay for it.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Are you still offering guaranteed replacement?

MS. BISNO:  Yes, we are.  Now, I will qualify it.  That’s about 95 percent of our business.  Homes that were built after 1950 get guaranteed replacement cost coverage.  Homes built before do not have guaranteed replacement cost coverage.  That’s the nature of the policy.  It’s not a choice.  I mean, you get one or the other depending on the age of the home.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, if the house is older than 1950, then what do you tell the insured so that they’re properly apprised of the potential for underinsurance?

MS. BISNO:  That’s in large part why we went through this insurance devalue process that we did.  If we got it right, they are fully insured.

We had one home in the San Bernardino area that was not guaranteed replacement cost.  But between us, the policyholder, and the contractor, there was a small difference and we paid it.  [Applause.]
I would also like to note that we immediately applied with the Insurance Commissioner for a discount on the homeowners policies for those homes that were completely destroyed.  So, since last October, our policyholders have not paid for a full policy when they did not have a house.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Regardless of when they renewed.  [Applause.]
MS. BISNO:  It was retroactive.  It went back to the first date of the fires.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Was the bill that was signed into law originally retroactive and then got. . . . it never was.  It should have been. 

Thank you.

MS. BISNO:  You’re welcome.

AUDIENCE:  What’s AAA done to undervalued homes regarding their property, their landscaping, all the other components?  They undervalued the house.  They undervalued the contents . . .

MS. BISNO:  Can I explain how the guaranteed replacement cost works?

SENATOR SPEIER:  Sure.

MS. BISNO:  With a guaranteed replacement cost policy, the amount floats, in essence.  Let’s say the house was insured for $500,000, and it turns out that it costs $650,000 to replace.  The other coverages go up along with it.  For example, contents are a percentage of that replacement cost.  They will go with the actual amount.  The same thing for additional living expenses (ALE).  They are tied to the amount of the policy.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you. 

Ms. Reimus.
MS. KAREN REIMUS:  Hi, Senator Speier.  It’s a pleasure to see you again.  It’s been a couple of months.  Fortunately, I’m happy to report some personal good news, but I’m still pissed off, quite frankly. 
I just want to touch on two points.  First of all with the underinsurance.
As you know from my previous testimony in the Senate, we had our policy for four months before the fire.  We bought four months.  We were underinsured to the tune, conservatively, not even touching on the personal property, quite frankly, of $149,000.  

You know, the very first week we met with the insurance company, our first meeting, they assured us we were adequately insured.  I distinctly remember that because my husband and I went out in the parking lot and hugged, thinking, Okay.  It’s going to be okay.  They’re telling us we’re adequately insured.  Little did we know that that was the beginning of a very long journey.  

The journey for us has a happy end, but for most of the people in this room it does not.  I think one of the reasons it has a happy end for us is we are two lawyers.  And I’ve never been so happy in my entire life that I went to law school—ever.  And you know what?  It shouldn’t take two lawyers to resolve an underinsurance claim.  [Applause.] 

At the last time I saw you, we had requested reformation, and after a very legalistic and aggressive strategy on mine and my husband’s part, mostly mine—I told them that in my file I think they call me “crazy bitch”—we did get reformation of our policy limits in April.  Other issues remained unresolved.  We did finally resolve them at the 51-week mark.  

I’m under nondisclosure as to those issues.  Just for the record, my insurance company wanted me under nondisclosure as to all issues regarding my claim, and I refused.  I negotiated that down because I was unwilling to shut up about underinsurance.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who’s your insurer?

MS. REIMUS:  Liberty Mutual, who, quite frankly, I think has behaved better than most of the insurance companies in this room.  But the fact is, they didn’t turn that money over.  I had to fight for it, and it was really unpleasant.  And you know what?  I’m really tired.  And I’ve had a year, and I’m exhausted, like all of the other people in this room.

Well, we did get reform, thank God, in April.  But you now what?  Fifty-one weeks for final resolution.  

You’ve had a lot more eloquent speakers than me tonight talking about underinsurance, so let me just say, I put together a brief case study in underinsurance, including documentation, including my very legalistic demand letters, and finally the company’s response.  

I will say one of my favorite quotes is, in the letter of December 19th, “Although I do not feel your limits will be exhausted, I want you to be mindful of the following policy limits.”  Yeah, thanks.  Good times.

Anyway, these are not under nondisclosure, and I’ve made you a copy so you can kind of see a progression of how it works.

What I’d like to spend just a moment speaking on, because you’ve been really touching on the underinsurance, is the personal property inventory requirement.

Okay, this sucks.  It blows.  And you know what?  I’m sorry.  I tell people this year, “It’s like Karen unplugged.”  I have no filter on anymore, and that’s not a good thing in many respects, and in other ways it’s good.  I don’t care.  We’ve been through the ringer, and it’s just been so horrible.

I am personally convinced that this is mental warfare on insureds to take your eye off the ball of the scope of loss under structure.  They try to take your eye off the ball by forcing you to complete this absolutely ridiculous inventory to the degree. . . . I’m just going to read you a couple of entries from my master bedroom/bathroom:  Maxipads, Anbesol, razor blades, Claritin, comb, Soft Soap, cotton rounds, night light, toilet paper, kids wash.  Okay, if you go over, I then have a number with a little “r.”  That meant it was replaced, so I could claim the full amount.  This meant that attached to this, I had attached—I didn’t bring it because there were too many of them—receipts that were line item categorized to each of these lines.  Do you understand what I’m saying?  Because the personal property inventory person had told me that somebody sent her a big bag of receipts.  She told me this on the phone.  She had to send them back because she didn’t know what they went to.  So, I took that to mean I had to correlate every single line item on the receipt to every single item in my completely burned down 2,245-square-foot house.  You cannot imagine the amount of work that this took.  

I have to tell you that after months of working on this and the emotional trauma it was taking on myself—who, quite frankly, I’m pretty tough—this did it.  And I eventually sought and won a waiver of my personal property inventory requirement but not before I had just been emotionally traumatized by being forced to recall every single thing I lost.  [Applause.]  I wasn’t trying to remember.  I was trying to forget.
SENATOR SPEIER:  So, tell us what the answer is.

MS. REIMUS:  The answer is a waiver of the personal property inventory requirement and total loss scenarios.  That’s the answer.  

For them to suggest that we need to itemize everything in a total loss scenario to justify a payout of policy limits is ridiculous.  I’ll tell you why.

First of all, insurance companies’ own actuarial. . . . their own actuaries have figured out over and over and over again that the most representative value of your personal property is 75 percent of an accurate Coverage A dwelling cost.  They know this.  That’s why they send it out.  They know this.  Actuarial tables, payouts and payouts and payouts prove this.  That is why they write in as a standard in the industry, most companies, 75 percent of your Coverage A is your personal property coverage.  They don’t need to force you through this after you’ve just lost everything you ever had in your entire life, to recount it all in painful and graphic detail.  

You know what?  I didn’t need to recall the baby blanket I brought my daughter home from the hospital in.  The VHS tapes that I had her and my son’s births, you know, videotaped on.  
AUDIENCE:  Amen.

MS. REIMUS:  Yeah.  Good times. 

Anyway, people have really spoken to the underinsurance.  I’ve got that.  I’ve got also just the fact of the shenanigans, what I will call shenanigans—they are shenanigans—that the insurance companies, even one of the better ones, will pull.  We were told that there was no timeline flat out by the personal property insurance adjuster in the first week of the fire.  No time requirement to return this personal property inventory.  Well hallelujah, because we were all traumatized.  I’m like, Oh, maybe they have a heart.  Okay, I don’t have to worry about that right now.  Within sixty days we started getting letters, “We need your personal property inventory.”  Numerous telephone calls.  Finally, in January they sent me a letter saying it’s due within sixty days.  Of course, the lawyer in me shoots out a letter saying, “Are you now reversing your oral representation that there is no timeline?  If so, please indicate so in writing so I can pursue my bad faith claim immediately.”  And they backed down.

Eventually, like I said, due to the emotional trauma, I was able to negotiate a waiver.  I don’t know anybody else who did that, but I thought, This sucks.  This is bad faith.  This is intentional infliction of emotional distress.  But you know what?  I went to law school, and I can drop legal lingo like that and make it stick.  It shouldn’t take going to law school to resolve your claim appropriately.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, as a matter of fact, when we had our first hearing right after the fires in San Bernardino, this issue came up over and over again.  And it was then that Southern California Auto said that they were not going to require their insureds to fill that out, and I assumed that was the case.

MS. REIMUS:  You know what?  But nobody else has done that.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, I think what we need to do. . . . Mr. Cignarale, I think the Commissioner and the insurance companies and the Insurance Committee are going to have to sit down and resolve this, because this is. . . . you know, we’ve heard it now for over a year, and it does sound like . . .

MS. REIMUS:  It’s mental warfare.  They’re trying to take your eye off the ball.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Regardless of how you want to define it, I think the expectation from the insured is:  That’s how much money I’m going to get if my house burns down.  Not that I’ve got to prove this and then have it depreciated because it’s been used, but that That’s what I’m going to get.  And if we’re not going to do that, then we’re going to have to tell everyone.  Or, we’re going to have to hand them a video recorder and have them videotape everything.  But even then, you’re still in the situation . . .

AUDIENCE:  It’s burned up.  It’s gone.
SENATOR SPEIER:  No, if you videotaped it, put it in your. . . . gave it to your insurance company . . .

AUDIENCE:  They’ll lose it.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, I think everyone has to have a meeting of the minds of what this should be in California.  I don’t understand the value of requiring this inventory.  As if the people are committing some fraud?  I mean, is that the rationale?
Who from the industry would like to speak to why this inventory is so important?  Come on up.

Diane, I don’t mean to do this to you, especially since you’ve got a sprained something, huh?

MS. COLBORN:  A broken toe.

SENATOR SPEIER:  A broken toe.  All right.  
We’re going to have to resolve this, so give us, at least, your perspective from your clients.

MS. COLBORN:  I think that what the companies would say with respect to the inventory is that the personal property limits in the policy, that that’s a cap that’s designed to cover the insured amounts.  But not every insurance company offers the same amount.  And so, if you’re going to start saying that every time you have a total loss, you’re automatically going to pay the personal property limits, then that’s going to be. . . . that’s going to cause us an increase in the cost of insurance, because not everybody has. . . . if my house burned down, I would not be entitled to the cap on the personal property that’s in my policy because I don’t have very many personal contents.

SENATOR SPEIER:  I think, Ms. Colborn, I think they’re right in that they say they have come up with this formula based on actuarial studies over periods of time.  So, I find it hard to believe that these figures are not representative of what the average person is going to have in their home based on the value of that property.

MS. COLBORN:  Well, they’re not all the same, because some are maybe 75 percent, maybe 5 percent—50 percent, not 5—50 percent, 75 percent of their Coverage A amount.  So, they’re not all the same. 

I mean, I’m sympathetic to some of the concerns that people have raised about some of. . . . if companies are really requiring that you have to itemize every single thing in your medicine cabinet and attach a receipt to it and replace it before you get reimbursed, I can see why that would be really cumbersome.  I’m not sure if I could face that.  But I think that what the companies have tried to do—and again, I’m just speaking in general terms; I can’t speak for every insurance company—is to try to make it easier by providing assistance, and companies will send out inventory expeditors to help you go through it.

MS. REIMUS:  It doesn’t help because it’s still trauma.

MS. COLBORN:  I haven’t personally gone through it, so I appreciate that.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Colborn, let me ask you this.  What is the concern that the insurers have?  That there is going to be some form of fraud?  What is the concern?

MS. COLBORN:  There can be fraud.  I mean, I’m not saying that in this case that there was fraud, but we have situations where people had claimed that they had a certain amount of personal content in their home.  I’m not talking about the current situation.  I’m talking about in the past.  So, we have a duty to guard against fraud.  Basically, we’re wanting to replace what was lost.  I think if you just said automatically every total loss you’re going to pay. . . . that you would create an incentive for companies to offer less for personal contents.  So, what we need to look at is:  How do we make this an easier process?  I think the video recording that you suggested is an excellent idea.  Maybe the industry needs to do a better job of educating people on the importance of itemizing that and videotaping and storing it offsite and doing that before you have the loss so that you’re prepared for that.
MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  They told us we couldn’t remove our stuff until they looked at it, when it was burnt up in a pile.  This woman’s telling you that there’s some limits there.  Somebody’s house was empty and they put in a claim.  Whoopee!  We, the people in this room, our stuff was burned in a pile, and our insurance agents say, or adjusters, Don’t touch it until we come take a picture and look at it.  And then they say, We don’t have. . . . the first thing they say is, there’s a total loss.  This lady’s full of it!  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  She’s representing the company.
MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  She’s misleading you and misdirecting you.
SENATOR SPEIER:  She’s not misleading me, sir.
MS. COLBORN:  It’s certainly not my intent to mislead.  I think we are talking about a couple of different things, whether what property is left, it wasn’t all destroyed.  I think everybody’s interested that it be secured.  We also don’t want them to sit out in the open to be vandalized.  I think we’re here to talk about whether there was total loss—everything was destroyed, completely burned up—and we’re talking about how do we provide the record of what was lost so that it can be compensated.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Morrow, would you join with me in a meeting with the insurers to talk about this issue and see if we can . . . 

SENATOR MORROW:  I most definitely would.  And I would like to ask one question, Ms. Colborn.  I mean, in terms of whether we would video or do some sort of process—I mean, is this something that the insurance industry can come up with, short of requiring a statute, or is it going to be incumbent upon the State Legislature to bring the statute, to change the law and require it?
MS. COLBORN:  I’m certainly willing to sit down and see what we can work out.  I’m sure that it would require a statutory change.
MR. FULLER:  That is a legitimate approach.  It’s a type of insurance policy that’s not used often anymore.  It’s a stated policy.  It’s a stated loss statement.  It’s like a life insurance policy.  You lose your life, you’re paid the policy limits.  There’s no argument about the value of life.  What she is suggesting is that in total-loss cases, you just pay the certain amount of property, of the personal property, and not go through all the rest of the hassles because you have enough trouble dealing with rebuilding a house.

MS. COLBORN:  That’s exactly right, Jeff.  

MR. FULLER:  It’s a legitimate suggestion.  It is a legitimate form of insurance, and we’ll have to pursue it.  I don’t know—I think because insurance companies tend to be old fashioned and that policy limit of 50 or 65 percent of the structure—it has to be your personal property—and their inclination is to say, You need to prove it.  There’s other ways in dealing with that, and it might be explored since it seems to be a fairly common gripe upon the people who have gone through it.


UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  It’s not a gripe, sir.  It’s just a factual scenario.
MR. FULLER:  After a disaster.  We’ve seen this after a disaster before.  And so, I think it’s a legitimate consideration.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  You have the commitment of the chair and vice-chair of the Senate Insurance Committee to address this issue with the insurance companies in California.

MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  And make it retroactive? . . . [inaudible].
SENATOR SPEIER:  We’ll see how persuasive we can be.

MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Thank you.  [Applause.]
MS. ALICE BISNO:  Senators, since I can speak for a particular insurance company, can I briefly describe how we dealt with the contents issue?
SENATOR SPEIER:  Yes, very briefly.

MS. BISNO:  We have also found that the home contents generally do track the value of the home.  What we did was, once we verified the house as a total loss, we paid 80 percent of the contents coverage.  We then asked to get the remaining 20 percent that they give us, not the kind of inventory that you’ve described, but a more general-like inventory—how many suits, for example; how many shoes; what the medicines were worth; if there was a television set, a stove, a refrigerator—because just about all of our policyholders have replacement cost coverage for the contents too.  We weren’t looking for what they paid for it when they bought it or receipts but what it was going to cost to replace it.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  My next speaker is . . . 

MS. REIMUS:  I was so emotional, I forgot to mention something about the future, and that’s why I’m here, at the risk of annoying my attorney, is I think that in order to inform consumers, there needs to be an opt-out form if you do not wish to fully insure yourself.  We have all these people after disasters who thought they were fully insured.  I think there needs to be something.  Give us the information.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Actually an excellent idea.  Thank you.

MS. REIMUS:  I’m sorry to be so rude, but thank you.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  David Castle.  As Mr. Castle is coming forward, Mr. West,  if you would come forward and be seated at the table as well.  I’m trying to move along here.  And Diane Griffin.

MR. DAVID CASTLE:  I’m the moderator for Cedar Fire Rebuilding Resource Group.  I’m not here for myself or to tell my story but to kind of compile all of the stories into one quick, brief statement.

We have companies that are out there making offers to settle well below the amounts required to build on the first offer.  These are negotiating tactics.  Using multiple adjusters to negotiate settlements.  Delaying settlements to wear down the policyholder.  Reducing square footage for dwelling coverage, age, in order to reduce other coverage payments.  Creating impediments, such as onerous listing requirements, as we just heard.  Rushing policyholders to settle by imposing one-year statute of limitations.  That gives them a lot more power if the people don’t have time to negotiate, and then they delay those negotiations.  Not providing accurate, full-value estimates to rebuild homes—underinsurance.  Using confusing, lengthy verbiage terminology in the policies we heard tonight.  Not clearly and coherently notifying policyholders of reduced coverage.  Use-it-and-lose-it penalties.  Violations of Fair Claims Act.  Adding items to property lists without telling the insured.  This has happened in a few cases, though I’m not sure why.  Insurance telling victims to use personal property monies to cover underinsurance issues.  Adjusters not informing victims of all of the coverages and monies due, making them find out for themselves, looking through the difficult-to-read policies and trying to figure it out.  Adjusters not from California, not licensed in California, handling claims after the fire.  Adjusters focused on property—the personal property list again—versus the most important number, the scope of loss.  Dissuading people from doing the scope of loss by telling them, Here, this is what you’ve really lost.
Now, these items here that I just listed today are just a few of the items that people who are in my group have suggested that I just bring up and mention.  But clearly, you have a handle on all the complaints.  I suspect you also have an idea on how to make it right.  It seems like you’ve had a few ideas tonight, ideas such as estimating standards for rebuilding and using them and making the insurance companies use them; ideas such as providing a final offer within three months of a loss; ideas like automatic, full payments for personal property losses, as we just discussed.
They have the resources to determine these things, the actuary tables and things like this.  For them to tell you that, Oh, these all vary, and things like that, they’ve all got that figured in.  They know how much it costs them in general to do this, and they can set a limit on it.  They don’t have to make it so onerous.  So, it means that you have to turn around and look at the reason why they’re making it so difficult, and the difficulty is there in order to make it difficult for the people to get their full claims so that they can make a little bit more money at the expense of the people who have lost the most.  They know the costs, the methods, the means to rebuild, and far more compiled knowledge related to building expenses than any of the policyholders here today.  I have a feeling you know this too.
Ladies and gentlemen, there is an elephant in this building.  It belongs to the insurance companies.  The elephant is the unconscionable, disingenuous practices perpetrated by the insurance companies to trick their policyholders into settling for far less than is appropriate.  This elephant is sitting on all of us seated before you.  The insurance companies are doing everything they can to prevent you from looking at this elephant.  They tell you they’re doing what’s right; they tell you that, Oh, this isn’t true or That isn’t true or that People really don’t mean what they’re saying; they just think this.  They would have you believe that they are hallucinating.

The insurance companies—all you have to do is look at it and you will see that it is squashing people you represent, the people you gave your word you would protect and serve.  All you have to do is the right thing:  Tell the insurance company to get rid of their elephant.  Look them in the eye and tell them you can see the elephant.
Thank you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you, Mr. Castle.  [Applause.]

MR. TIM WEST:  Yes, hello.  First, I want to apologize for my last little outburst.

SENATOR SPEIER:  It’s all right.
MR. WEST:  My biggest thing tonight is, everything that you’ve heard tonight, in my opinion, from the audience has been true.  Nobody here is making this up.  We’re living it every day.

The thing that bothered me the most today when I decided to come to this was the loss of time that nobody even accounts for.  [Applause.]  I mean, the loss of time is phenomenal.  Commissioner . . .
SENATOR SPEIER:  You just want to be home watching CSI, right?

MR. WEST:  I like Law & Order.  [Laughter.]  
Commissioner Garamendi came here early.  I went to three of his four meetings when he came.  I’m sorry I learned politics for the first time.  I was impressed with what I heard; I’m unimpressed with what I experienced from that.  The communication from that office was minimal, and I don’t see that it’s really helped too many people.  For him to, on TV, say people that are insured by Allstate should hire a lawyer a couple of weeks before the deadline, I thought that was just unacceptable.  For me to get a letter in the mail about I should go to mediation a day before the deadline, knowing that there’s a time limit to even hire a lawyer, I think that’s pretty sad.


SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, Mr. West, you should know that if you engage in mediation, the statute is tolled.


MR. WESSON:  Well, I was told that I had a certain date.

Now, the other side of this with time, I’m not a professional fire victim.  I’ve never done this before.  To learn how to build my house, to learn how to do a personal items list, to learn how to learn about code upgrades, to deal with the municipalities, you have no idea what that’s like to have them tell you, Your house wasn’t that big; you can’t have that house again; you can’t have that on your property; where’s your property line?  The insurance company scope of loss took six to eight months.

For my insurance company, the “professional,” to tell me what they said my house was worth, and then I’m underinsured on top of that, and then they say, You’ve got to have it built in a year—they couldn’t even give me their scope of loss.  And then they say, When is it going to be done?  And there’s other deadlines coming up that, if it’s not done, I lose things.

The time that this takes, it’s just unfair.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who’s your insurer?

MR. WEST:  Allstate.  I don’t believe their slogan.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, they’re here tonight.

MR. WEST:  I know.  I’ve hired an attorney.  I’m not going to talk to them tonight because they’ve taught me that that’s all I have.  That’s what I have to do.  They took me there.  I didn’t want to go there.  I liked my little, plain, ordinary life, you know?  They’ve taken me there.  They’ve taught me that that’s the way that I have to do business with them, you know, and we go on.  And the saddest part of this is everybody here had to alter everything in their life due to the insurance company’s handling of this.  [Applause.]
The first two weeks of my claim, I had three adjusters in my yard, and I asked them, May I settle with you today?  Will you give me all my limits and close me out now?  Give me my ALE; give me all my limits.  All of them said, You’re a total loss; you’re a total loss.  The answer that day was, It’s too early.  I understand because their game is to wear us out.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay.  Let me ask you this, Mr. West.  Are you saying that if you were just offered the limits on your policy, you would walk away a happy man?

MR. WEST:  No.  In the first two weeks of this?  Yes, because then I would have had a year of opportunity to improve my life, not this year of loss.  Right now?  I don’t have a house yet.  I’ve got a minimum of a year.  Now I’ve hired an attorney.  It looks like two years.  I don’t get that back.  It’s gone.  Where does it go?  I’m an old man now—almost.  Not that gone, but I’m getting there.  But I didn’t want to do this for the last year and the next two years.  It wasn’t in my goal.  Had they been upfront with me and just said yes, I wouldn’t be going to court with them.  I wouldn’t have wasted my time.

SENATOR SPEIER:  What is the dispute in your case?

MR. WEST:  There’s not enough money to rebuild.  The Coverage A was too low to even cover my personal items.  They gave me 160.  Sounds great.  I’m at 420 with what I lost.  There’s no fraud.

SENATOR SPEIER:  In terms of personal items?

MR. WEST:  Personal items.  There’s no fraud.  The reason that Coverage A is low is because their Coverage B can be low, because their landscape percentage can be low, because their debris removal can be low.  All of those things are affected by their Coverage A.  Give me my Coverage A, let me rebuild my house, and let me go on with my life.  They don’t want that to happen, and that is the bottom line with the insurance company:  Don’t spend money; wear us out.  And that’s all it is.  The best day I had in the last year was hiring the attorney.  It took a load off my back.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  The underinsurance—how much were you underinsured?
MR. WEST:  It’s hard to say exactly, depending on who I talk to.  My numbers look to be $200,000 to $300,000, from what I had to where I’m going.  I never expected to be paid for everything I had.  I understand depreciation.  I’m in business for myself.  I’ve done it my whole life.  I’ve always been in business for myself.

You know, if the insurance company had come in and said 80 percent, I would have said thank you, and I would have been on my way, and I wouldn’t be here tonight, and I wouldn’t be feeling the way I would, and my family wouldn’t be spread all over town, wouldn’t be going on like this.  But they don’t care about us.  They care about Mr. Washington, Mr. Benjamin.  That’s all they care about.  They don’t care about us.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, what’s it going to take to rebuild your home?

MR. WEST:  It’s hard to say, but better than $400,000.  I had two structures on my property, and I’m in the $300,000 range.  The other side of that is, that’s a good question:  How much is it going to take to rebuild my house?  I have to stop earning a living to find that out.  Who’s going to do that for me?  They don’t pay me for lost time out of business, at my business.  I have to shut down to go chase all this stuff, to chase my personal items list, to chase my scope of loss.  It took them six months to give me a scope of loss—seven months.  I don’t do that for a living.  To chase my landscaping and my debris removal?  You know, I combed my own lot.  Luckily, Shadow Mountain Church gave me something.  They cleaned part of my property.  What a gift.  But nobody repaid my time to help that happen, to save that little teacup that we found in that big old giant pile of garbage that these volunteers were trying to save for us.  Nobody saves any of that time for us.  They can’t give it back to us.  That’s time.  I’m not asking for the time.  I’m asking for my time to quit being wasted.  It’s the only valuable thing I have left.  [Applause.]

Thank you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Diana Griffin.

MS. DIANA GRIFFIN:  Thank you.  
Along with the myriad of issues that everybody has already brought up, I’ve chosen to just speak of one—one that’s related to two.  Along with everybody else, we requested a copy of our policy, and our agents pretty much said, Well, why do you need that?  Because it’s got a lot of legalese and you’re just not going to understand it.  Well, after a lot of calling, we finally got it.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who is your insurer?

MS. GRIFFIN:  Allstate.

My husband and I went through it very meticulously.  We found we had the deluxe-plus homeowners policy.  Under there it had a section.  It says:  “If a sudden and accidental, direct, physical loss results in both the covered loss to the dwelling, other than the breakage of glass or safety-glazing material, the loss of land stability, we will pay up to $10,000 as an additional amount of insurance for repair costs associated with the land.  This includes the cost required to replace, rebuild, stabilize, or otherwise restore the land necessary to support that part of the dwelling sustaining the covered loss.”

I tried to pursue that.  I had first asked the adjuster, Are we covered with this?  He said, I don’t think so.  I’m not familiar with California policy, whatever.  So, we go down to the agent who sold us the policy.  He said, I’m sorry.  I can’t tell you what that covers.  I just sell the policies.

So, then I started my letter-writing campaign to Allstate, saying, I think that we’re covered under this.  I’ll just read you one of the sentences they wrote back:  “The circumstances of your loss do not meet this criteria because the dwelling was completely destroyed during the fire.  The land is no longer supporting the dwelling since the dwelling no longer exists.”  [Laughter.]
Then, I was counseled to write them back and saying, you know—I’m trying to read my thing—“After reviewing our additional information and Allstate still does not feel we are entitled to compensation under this section of our policy, we request that you provide three unique, specific examples of where this coverage policy applies.”

They essentially wrote back:  “Respectfully, we will not provide the three unique, specific examples requested in your letter, as they would have no bearing on this loss or claim.”

So, it wasn’t until the day John Garamendi came down here we had received a call from the Allstate attorneys saying, We have reconsidered the facts related to the loss and have reviewed your policy.  Based on new information (which we’re not sure what that is yet), we’ve determined that there is coverage available for the stabilization, and we ended up getting the $10,000.  Which then I made a copy of this letter and gave it to every Allstate insured that I could find. 

My dissatisfaction with the adjusters is they should be telling us what we’re covered.  They should come.  There should be some kind of advocate or somebody saying, Here are all the things that you’re covered.  I mean, we shouldn’t have to fight this hard for this.

And that’s all I have to say.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Very good point.  There’s an ombudsman in the Department of Managed Health Care on behalf of consumers, and we don’t really have an ombudsman in the Department of Insurance.  Do we?
MR. CIGNARALE:  We do, but they don’t necessarily serve that specific function.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Because that’s what we need.  There’s no reason why anyone should have to be a lawyer, and there should be a third party.  It sounds like it makes sense—I mean the Department of Insurance could just read the policy and say, Yes, you’re covered; no, you’re not.

Okay.  Thank you.

Rajesh Kenwar.  Don Holt.  If you would please come forward.  And Noelle Carrazani—Carranza—excuse me.

Is Rajesh here?

MR. RAJESH KENWAR:  Yes, ma’am.  That’s me.
I’ll make this very brief because everybody has said what I wanted to say.

My insurance company is Allied, and compared to a lot of people, I’m pretty well off, but I will say this:  I’m underinsured.  But that’s not what I want to talk about.  I’m going to talk about an issue which I think others have covered, and that is the fact that the insurance companies, especially mine, seems to have treated me, and I think others, with very little dignity.  I think when somebody’s home has burned down, that is very inappropriate.  Specific, the fact that Liberty lied to you on what your policy limits, as an example, is one indignity.

I have for you here a letter that I wrote to the Insurance Commissioner jointly with other Allied people, where Allied adjusters, two different adjusters, had told the same lie to all of us.  Because I went to a CARE group meeting, I figured out that they were lying to me.  I wrote a letter, and they said, Yes, you’re right. Your policy limit is going up $50,000.  Then I talked to another Allied person with the same lie from another adjuster, so he wrote a letter.  And they wrote back, Yes, you’re right.  In fact, your limit should go up by $50,000.  And then I have a third person who didn’t write and was never told that in fact his limits were higher than what they had told him.  In other words, Allied had deliberately misled us on what our limits are.  I think that is to treat someone with great indignity.

I have a good example, which I could give you because I wrote a letter to the insurance, to my insurance company, outlining what we call “the week from hell.” During one week, they cancelled five appointments, ten minutes after each appointment.  Each time we were told, You’re going to be given a check, and then the lady who was supposed to give us the check just disappeared from town and went back to Sacramento without even telling me that she was not going to meet me.  All of these indignities, I think, we should not have to undergo.

But I have made copies of a letter that I wrote jointly with other Allied personnel—other Allied insured—where they have told us all the same lie.  It was a very deliberate lie because there’s not one adjuster.  They are making the same mistake because three different adjusters are deliberately telling the same lie to their insured.  And the moment somebody caught it, they said, Yes, you’re right.  But she did not write to them saying, You have lied to me on my limits.  They did not let you know.

SENATOR SPEIER:   But what happens in a situation like that is that it triggers a market conduct exam because everyone should be treated equally under the law.  So, what happens when there appears to be a pattern of misinformation?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Well, you’re exactly right.  I did forget to mention that we have already scheduled and have sent notices to at least six insurance companies, a kind of targeted market conduct exam, regarding the wildfire lawsuits, both on the claims end and on the rating/underwriting end to deal with both the underinsurance issues and the claims practices.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, to answer your comment, Mr. Kenwar, there will be a market conduct exam.  I’m not sure—is Allied one of the ones in which there has been a market conduct exam?

MR. CIGNARALE:  Yes, it is.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, in that situation, they will look at any number     of. . . . they pull claims.  And then based on what they find, they then require the insurance company to go back over all the claims and provide the same benefit or the same coverage.
MR. KENWAR:  That may be.  I’d like to make just two comments.

First, at this point I know that I was able to catch them, and I think the fact that I had to undergo the effort to catch them is itself inappropriate.

The second thing I’d like to mention is that when we wrote this letter jointly to the Insurance Commissioner and we FedExed it to him, we never heard back from the Insurance Commissioner.  So, they have never acknowledged that they have got this particular complaint.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, now they do.

MR. KENWAR:  Hopefully now they do, yes.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Do you have an extra copy?  We’ll make a copy for the department.

All right.  Thank you.

MR. KENWAR:  You saw the letter that was sent to them, to two different people in the Insurance Commissioner’s office.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you.

MR. DON HALSEY:  My name’s Don Halsey.  I lost a house.  My wife and I lost our house up in Crest.  I’m insured by Farmer’s, and I’m one of the lucky ones.  I was able to work with Farmer’s, and they worked with me.  After 11 months we settled, and thank God for that.  I’d like to think that maybe the other insurance companies would listen to what I’m saying and step up and do what AAA did and what Farmer’s did.

There is so much pain being said because of this ugly insurance industry.  It is warfare.  It is psychological, and they’re very good at it.  It affected us, and it was difficult, but we were able to settle.  I can’t say anything more than what you’ve heard.  You seem to have a handle on there.  I was privileged enough to be in front of you in Sacramento as one of the twelve survivors, and I learned quite a bit.  I’ve had to learn a lot.  I’ve been to, probably, over a hundred meetings in insurance.  Just like the gentleman said before, it’s a waste of time.  There is an insurance man who stepped right up here and lied to your face when he said that the insurance companies don’t sell underinsurance policies.  They do.  They absolutely do.  I was underinsured by 50 percent.  And if I hadn’t had George Kehrer to look over my shoulder, I might not have ever known.  It’s sad.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, Farmer’s made good on the 50 percent underinsurance?

MR. HALSEY:  Yes.  They reformed.  I mean, it took eleven months.  It took a lot of pain.  I hope that the rest of them can. . . . well, this is what we’re going through.  It’s difficult.

SENATOR SPEIER:  We all need mental health services at the end of this evening, I think, huh?

MR. HALSEY:  Yeah.  Maybe that’s why the marriage counseling sign was put in front of my door, for some reason, because my wife and I are now living in these small quarters for another year because we’ve been set back by insurance and the county.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Why do think you were able to persuade Farmer’s?

MR. HALSEY:  That’s a good question.  I’m not sure exactly why.  I think the Lord was looking over us, I guess.  We stuck our nose in a lot of places and screamed and hollered and turned them down when they tried to make offers.  When they said my scope of loss, that I went and found, and they tried to take things out, I just stood my ground.  I said, I don’t care what you take out of there.  The bottom line is still the same.  This is what it costs to replace my house, and I’m standing still until you meet that.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Were you represented by an attorney?

MR. HALSEY:  Two hours away—no.  We were fortunate we didn’t have to go to the attorney.  We did speak to one.  He saw our settlement and suggested that we—which we knew we would—we would accept it.

Thank you for listening.  [Applause.]
SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Carranza is coming up.  If Carolyn Albee would join her, and Philip Savage.

MS. NOELLE CARRANZA:  Hi.  My name is Noelle Carranza.   We live in Crest.  We lost our home in Crest. 
In 1996, my husband and I bought our policy through State Farm.  We bought a guaranteed replacement policy.  November 4th this year, 2004, we were notified that we did not have guaranteed replacement because it was discontinued in 1997.  Had we been notified of that, we would have shopped around.  “Guaranteed” is a big word to us.  So, that’s one of the points that I want to really focus on here.  You’ve heard everything else tonight.

Another thing is the square footage.  We were being insured for a 900-square-foot house.  We actually had a 1,515-square-foot house.  We did not add on and fail to tell State Farm, which they have implied in some of their letters. 

The land compaction . . . 

SENATOR SPEIER:  Can I ask you about the 900 square feet?  How did you come up with that number?

MS. CARRANZA:  That is what it says on the tax records.  Now, I have since proven to the tax assessor’s office and the county my actual square footage.  That is all in order now.  But State Farm needs to take responsibility for incorrectly measuring the house.  They never measured the house is what it comes down to.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Did they come out at all?  Did they ever inspect?
MS. CARRANZA:  No.  They would go by the tax records.  There’s a difference between 900 square feet and 1,515.
SENATOR SPEIER:  If you received on your declaration form. . . . let me tell you what some insurance companies do.  They change policies every year, and you’ll get a booklet that comes with your renewal.
MS. CARRANZA:  Correct.
SENATOR SPEIER:  And oftentimes they’ll say the new policies cover “X-X-X-X-X.”  They won’t say it doesn’t cover guaranteed replacement anymore; they just tell you what it does cover.  Sometimes they’ll say, And it does not cover “X-X-X.”  
Would you read that?
MS. CARRANZA:  If I saw that I no longer had guaranteed replacement, is that what you’re asking me?
SENATOR SPEIER:  Well, oftentimes it might be buried in a pamphlet that has a lot of other information.
MS. CARRANZA:  To be honest with you, I flip through most of the stuff that comes through.
SENATOR SPEIER:  You do?  I don’t.
MS. CARRANZA:  I said, “flip through.”

SENATOR SPEIER:  Yes.  I don’t, and I chair this committee and have for six years.  So, I’m trying to figure out how we really inform people in a way that is meaningful.
MS. CARRANZA:  Have signatures—policyholder signatures.  If they didn’t sign it, they didn’t read it.  You know, they’re unaware of what changes are being made.  And insurers can’t make policy changes without notifying the people. 

There was no reduction in my coverage. . . . in my policy, by the way.  So, I went from having guaranteed replacement to whatever it is—extended replacement.  But my policy sure didn’t change in the amount that we paid.
The other point I want to talk about is land compaction and that kind of thing.  State Farm doesn’t cover any land compaction unless you’re on the same exact footprint.  I’m on a 50-by-100 lot.  I cannot be that far off my footprint, considering all the setbacks and everything.  I mean, we’re talking six inches on both sides, and that’s pretty pathetic.  We’re $58,000 short on our policy.
SENATOR SPEIER:  And where are you in the process?  Are you interested in mediating?
MS. CARRANZA:  Yes, I have requested mediation.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Through?
MS. CARRANZA:  Through CDI.
SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  If you would like us to assist in any way, you can fill out that form.
MS. CARRANZA:  I have filled it out.  And thank you.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you.
Mr. Savage?

MR. PHILIP SAVAGE:  Yes.  Thank you for the opportunity.  My name is Philip Savage. 
My situation is a little unique.  I did not lose my home in the wildfire.  I was working with other agencies as a volunteer with the people in Ramona who did lose their homes and who were evacuated from the estates.  

However, this summer I was in Africa, in Kenya, on a humanitarian mission.  I have a background in emergency medicine.  I was working in a hospital in Kenya.  While away, my housekeeper, through negligence, flooded my home.  So, I have a claim with Allstate.  

Basically, if I were to have to sort of summarize what it’s like, I’m living in a dumpster without a bathroom.  There’s mold.  There’s other hazardous materials.  There is this old asbestos tile and whatnot that has to be taken out.  And I’ve been experiencing some foot dragging.  I was told, when I voiced my concerns about hazardous materials and conditions to my claims adjuster, that Allstate, the third largest carrier in the nation, doesn’t have anybody in their retinue or on retainer to come and do hazardous materials surveys.  I was on my own.  So, I went and got my own person, and they came out and did a survey, and yes, indeed, I do have problems.  I have mold and other materials there that need to be dealt with.  So, I told Allstate about this, and they said, Well, we’ll have the company. . . . they told me on two occasions that Service Master in Lemon Grove, who did the original damage mitigation work, was not certified to do mold or asbestos abatement.  

On a third occasion I was told, Oh, well, Lemon Grove Service Master, they can do mold but they can’t do asbestos, so they will subcontract with PW Stevens.  I’m not going to do that because I have no confidence in Service Master.  They did a lousy job.  This was borne out by JMR Environmental who did the hazardous material survey.  They found high levels of moisture in the flooring that was not taken care of by Service Master.

So, I’m sort of on my own in that regard.  I’m trying to get the work done.  I’ve asked for a copy of my policy and the declaration page.  I’ve asked for a copy of Allstate’s preliminary scoping.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Have you received anything?

MR. SAVAGE:  No, ma’am.  I’ve asked for a copy of their preliminary scoping for the last two, two-and-a-half months.  I’ve not received that.  I’ve asked for a copy of the lab report for my carpet analysis.  I’ve not received that.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Ms. Chilgren is in the back of the room.

MR. SAVAGE:  We’ve spoken. 
I’m experiencing a lot of foot dragging.  I was told on Friday by Karen Arsey, who does the ALE with Allstate in my case, that there is some question about the habitability of my home after the hazardous material abatement work is done.  They feel that after that work is done that. . . . the impression I got was that the house would be habitable.  I submit that a house without heat, which I have now—I haven’t had heat since I returned in August, but when the abatement work is done there will be no hot water, there will be no kitchen, there will be no toileting facilities, there will be no laundry.  So, I submit that a home without those basic necessities is not habitable, and the idea that it might be flies in the face of all reason.  

I’m starting to get some stonewalling from them in this regard.

SENATOR SPEIER:  What do you want?

MR. SAVAGE:  I want some people to get their attention and say, Look, shape up.  I feel like I have a contract with Allstate.  I pay my premium on time in full.  If I have a loss, then they step up and give me, not a penny more, not a penny less, but absolutely what I’m due, and get it on time and no singing and dancing.

SENATOR SPEIER:  I think you’ve been heard.

MR. SAVAGE:  Thank you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Do you have a comment?

MS. DELIA CHILDREN:  I might.  Delia Chilgren with Allstate Insurance Company.  

I had an opportunity to meet Mr. Savage a little earlier this evening, and this is the first time I became aware of his claim with Allstate and the issues that he also raised.  He has some issues about how he wants his home valued and so on prospectively.

We’ve made a commitment and have an underwriting manager from our California office who will be working with him to make sure that the limits are what he feels are appropriate for his home on a going-forward basis.  We have a claims manager here locally who has given him the name of a person who he can contact but will be following up personally within the next three or four days to determine that all these steps were taken to address the mold claim on his home and to resolve that as quickly as possible.  We’ve had an opportunity to discuss these issues with him extensively this evening, and I can commit to you personally that we will follow up on the issues that he has raised.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Mr. Savage, you’ve also submitted a consent form as well?

MR. SAVAGE:  Yes, ma’am, I have.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you.

All right.  Ms. Albee.

MS. CAROLYN ALLBEE:  Hi.  My name is Carolyn Albee.  I’m in the Flynn Springs area which is between Alpine and Lakeside.  I am insured with Allstate.  And I want to, real quick, add something to a few things that were already said.

My adjuster for personal property told me to write out my list, and I said to him, Couldn’t you, like, email me a form that you want me to use or something?  Let us do it on the computer.  And he said, Yeah.  He sent me a Word form.  I said, It would be a lot easier if it was in Excel.  He said, Oh, you know how to use Excel?  I said, Yes.  And so he sent me that.

Subsequent to that, all the adjusters for Allstate went to a meeting in Diamond Bar, and they were told specifically, DO NOT GIVE OUT THOSE FORMS ON THE COMPUTER.  And that is the most asinine thing I’ve ever heard of, because that would have made our lives so much easier for those of us that had access to computers to do our list on the computers.  And why the insurance agents don’t want to do that.

You’ve heard about our structure, and then there’s the 50 percent additional that might be available for our structure.  Well, guess what?  When they give us that 50 percent additional, it doesn’t increase the other coverages by 50 percent also.  Our personal property and everything stays back at the original price.  So, those are things that were said before, and I wanted to touch on those.

Now, my status.

When Commissioner Garamendi came here in April and urged us, if we had any concerns—not necessarily complaints; maybe it hadn’t gotten that far—but concerns, to file an RFA, which I did with Allstate.  Allstate has been dragging their feet with my policy and with all the others.  

I did not get my final structure 50 percent additional check until July.  In my mind ALE should then go an additional year from when you get that check.  Because until you get that check, you have no idea what you have or don’t have to build with.  And then, it still takes you at least a year.  I’m not even in the building permit stage yet.

Allstate kept dragging their feet on that even though I was going through the Insurance Commissioner.  Letters kept going back and forth.  It finally reached the stage at the end of September.  Now mind you, in the clause it says that you have one year if you’re going to file a lawsuit.  It finally reached the stage that the Insurance Commissioner basically told them, Look, you either reply to this.  You have twenty-eight days to reply to this or it will go into mediation.  The twenty-eight days wasn’t going to be until after the one-year deadline.

So, yes, I have hired a lawyer.  And so, while I appreciate your offer to intercede, that’s why I won’t take you up on it.  Because I do have a lawyer, because Allstate dragged their feet so long that finally, October 21st, five days before the deadline, my case was filed, and I still had not heard back through the Commissioner’s office that Allstate had bothered to reply to them.  It wasn’t until after that, that I got the offer from the Insurance Commissioner’s office to say, If you’d like to go into mediation, we could now do it.  Well, by then we’d already filed the suit.

Okay.  Now my personal complaints.

Why in the world do they depreciate replacement costs?  I’m an accountant.  I know you depreciate historical cost, not replacement cost.  If on my personal inventory or building my house I say, This is how much it’s going to cost to replace it,  you don’t then depreciate it.  Depreciation is based on original cost.  We asked for replacement cost.

In 1985, here in San Diego, we had what was known as the Normal Heights Fire.  It went through an area where there were Craftsmen bungalow houses that people had bought and lived in since the twenties, the thirties, the forties.  My grandparents’ house, they bought in the fifties.  In 1985, they found out when those houses were lost that a lot of the people had their insurance coverage from when they bought their houses.  They had $10,000 or $20,000.  So, most of us in San Diego learned in 1985 to ask for replacement cost.  That’s what I asked for.  I specified it.  

You talk about Marshall and Swift.  In one of the workshops we went through in Marshall and Swift, we found out, yes, the QuickQuote, the second page where they do the QuickQuote, that’s where my policy limits were—$82,000 on my structure.   If, in the workshop, we went through the full seven pages—and to me it wasn’t that big a deal.  I can’t believe it when these insurance companies say, Oh, but it takes so long.  It didn’t take that long.  It was worth it.  All of a sudden, magically, it was up to the $190,000 instead of $82,000; that both my contractor and my insurance adjuster agreed was the replacement cost on my house.  And the real pisser about that is that all my other coverages, my personal property and everything, is based on that $82,000.  

My insurance adjuster for the personal property, among the many adjusters I had, kept telling me, Work on your list, work on your list.  And then I’d email him, How does it look?
Well, it looks great.  Keep working on your list.  And then, all of a sudden I got this email, Stop working on your list.

I said, Why?  
He said, You’re up to $136,000.
I said, I know.  
He said, You’re not working on that anymore?
I said, Yeah.  I still have more to do.  
He says, No.  You don’t get it.  We capped you out at $57,000.  

Well, you know what?  If we went through all seven pages of Marshall Swift, the percentage of my personal property is almost to that $136,000.  Everything else falls in line.  And my lawyers, because of the percentages that are related to the other percentages in the policy, say my total personal property, all the other coverages, and my structure is $200,000 below what it should be.  

ALE:  Because they kept stalling and I didn’t get my check on the structure until July, it’s used up.  Now, I’m not in as bad a shape as some of the people because I have two jobs.  And yes, I’m dipping into what should be used to replace my replacement of my personal property, which was inadequate.  But, I mean, I have some resources there.  But I’ve used up my ALE because it only went through October.  I’m not even into the permitting stage yet.  And as backlogged as construction is in San Diego, it sounds like it’s going to be another year.  And that’s why I ask you to have the ALE be all the way up through when that last check comes and then an additional year.  That would be much more fair.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Albee, could you sum up please?

MS. ALBEE:  The one last thing I was going to say is this stupid thing about the adjusters.  The insurance companies need to be sending us out letters saying who our adjusters are and who to contact in case there’s problems, and if they change adjusters, they need to send us a new letter.  And now that all the adjusters are gone, who am I supposed to write to?  I’ve written three letters to former adjusters and to the North Brook office to extend the ALE.  Nobody has replied.  I don’t even know if I’m using the right address. 

And by the way, the insurance agents do not have our policies in their office.  I have asked my agent five times over the past year.  They do not have copies of our policies in their office.  He printed me a summary sheet off of his computer, and he has told me, Well, we have to submit a request, and it goes to some office up in L.A., and that’s where the copy comes from.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you, Ms. Albee. 

Jonathon Alvarado, Wes Danskin, Mark Hanson, if you could all come forward please.

MR. JONATHON ALVARADO:  My name is Jonathon Alvarado.  I want to thank you for coming.  I sure do appreciate all the work that you’ve been doing.  I’ve been going to. . . . taking all our time to go to all these meetings and to the Commissioner’s meetings and that.  And they have been encouraging.  But I do think that there has been a little more movement here tonight, and I appreciate that.

I was taking all kinds of notes as to what I was going to say.  But I’ve been, “Okay, well, scratch that one and scratch that one.”

SENATOR SPEIER:  Who are you insured with?

MR. ALVARADO:  I’m with Allied.  I was down to, like, just three little things here, and I think I’m down to two now.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Good.

MR. ALVARADO:  Yeah.  Praise God, huh?  But I did want to say that the front of my declarations page here says 100 percent replacement cost.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Can I see that please?

MR. ALVARADO:  Certainly.  And that is actually. . . . that’s our renewal one.  And you see the coverage there under Coverage A.  During the time of the fire, my coverage was only $181,000.  I went through the same thing as some of these others here—waiting for my estimate to come through.  It took them six months to get that through.

I agree with Ms. Albee about starting the ALE after the settlement.  That would certainly make more sense.  

Our contractor at the time they hired to give me an estimate said it would take eight to ten months to rebuild.  I was really encouraged at that time.  I thought, That’s not too long; that’s not too bad.  A year’s worth of ALE; we’re great.  He said “under normal circumstances.”  I should have realized that that was the key right there, “under normal circumstances,” because obviously, these aren’t normal circumstances, since we’re a year down the road already—over a year down the road—and we’re not there.

I’d like to see terms defined.  As you see in the policy there, it’s so confusing. 

 Also, in my A coverage there, I have been figuring for a while, trying to figure out how far underinsured I was.  And when we finally got that estimate at $443,000, it put me considerably under.  But that $181,000 that I had originally, they were touting the 50 percent.  Or, actually, for us it was only 25 percent, not 50 percent.  It was 25 percent more that would kick in, so that made it look a little better.  However, as I was reading through my policy on our debris removal, it said in there that the debris removal came out of that dwelling coverage, and that was rather disappointing.  But then there was a nice little thing that said that if there was over the limits, then they would give me an additional 5 percent.  Oh, that’s really nice.

So, I think everybody has pretty well covered everything else.  

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you, Mr. Alvarado.

MR. ALVARADO:  Oh, there was one thing.  In their cost—I forget what it was in exactly—but he said it was just a down-and-dirty based on square footage.  That just to start with, my adjuster gave us that to kind of just give us an idea of what they had paid us and what they would owe us.  Initially, their cost to replace was $291,000.  Clearly, I was underinsured just by their own estimate.  But then they gave us all the depreciation—how much they were going to pay—$291,000.  With the depreciation, it would knock it down to whatever the number was.  But I thought it was just ridiculous that they were going to depreciate the studs in my house.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Depreciate the studs in your house?

MR. ALVARADO:  The studs, yes.  I mean, I can understand the roof because you’re going to replace your roof.  I can understand paint and maybe floor covering.  But the studs in my house and the drywall, all the things that nobody is ever going to touch during the life of the house . . .

SENATOR SPEIER:  Except the termites.

MR. ALVARADO:  Except the termites maybe.  I think I might go with steel the next time.  But that was something that I really wanted to bring to your attention anyway.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Alvarado.

MR. ALVARADO:  Thank you.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Danskin?
MR. WES DANSKIN:  Thank you so much.  It reminds me a little bit of being in school with the 1920s and reading about Theodore Dreiser and some of the companies and unions and the problems with industries that were not appropriately dealing with their consumers.  I really feel you have a challenge, so I’ve been trying to think about what you can actually do.

The one thing that unscrupulous sales people usually find troublesome is light, and you’ve done a good job of shining light on things.

I hesitate to suggest that you have additional legislation that adds one more page to an already thick document.  We, actually, we’re very fortunate we lost our home in Scripps Ranch.  That wasn’t the fortunate part, but Farmers eventually settled with us, not too dissimilar from Don Halsey’s story.

But the problem that I see is that in rebuilding that house, we now have fifty pages to read before we can get the contract to go forward.  Did you want to sign it now, or did you not want to sign it?  I’m not sure that more pages gives the consumers as much hope as it does the insurance industry—things to hide behind.  At a certain point it’s impenetrable.  Fifty or a hundred pages of disclosures I doubt are going to be read by these people who have spent hours and hours and hours and hours learning something that none of us knew anything about when we started this process.

SENATOR SPEIER:  So, what should we do?

MR. DANSKIN:  I liked your idea of putting things on the web.  I would rather be at home with my three teenagers, one of whom’s a daughter who is taking her car in for repair, and I said, Search the web.  Go to Edmonds.  Go to Consumer Reports.  Talk to George Character—your insurance.

Tony flinched when you said that there are thousands of pages to put on a web.  I work for the U.S. Geological Survey.  There are 57,000 topographic maps of the United States.  We started with one.  They’re all online.  Same thing with anything you do:  You start. 
The other thing that you will be hit on is if you can’t provide a perfect solution.  I found the Marshall and Swift QuickQuote to be exactly as it was reputed to be—a poor choice.  The extended one was scarily close, within a percent.  The 75 percent for personal property is similarly scarily close for our typical middle class, 50 years old, in a suburb.  Okay, you’re not going to do the home in Crest that is a custom home built out of the rock of the hillside.  Okay.  I would love to be able to go online and use a Marshall and Swift and see if I’m close.  

Like I said, I work for the U.S. Geological Survey.  Sometimes it helps to get outside of one environment and look at another.  One of the things that we do for my real job is predict, actually, measure the amount of runoff in streams.  That’s very important because it predicts floods.  One of the things we struggled with for years was we’re out there measuring the stuff; it automatically is measured.  Do we report that?  It turns out now that we report it.  It goes to the satellite; it goes to the web; and if you want to find out what is happening in the San Diego River, you can find out right now.  We were very concerned about the errors.  We couldn’t answer all of the questions.  There are mechanical failures.  We might be wrong.  What if someone used that information inappropriately?  And then we finally decided that it was better that they have some information and they would be able to use it, and if it looked abundantly wrong, maybe they wouldn’t use it.  So, now we routinely put. . . . we have 7,000 gauging stations.  Five thousand of them across the United States are satellited.  They’re online.  If you want to check out what the Missouri River is flowing, you can do that because we felt that the benefit of providing that information was more important than the slight omissions that could occur. 

 Maybe we won’t hit with the Marshall and Swift all the homes in Harbison Canyon and Crest.  But for the bulk of those that are insured, I would find that kind of shining light through some sort of web stuff—whatever you can do—but not that forty-five pages that we get that, Oh, by the way.  This is the new policy.  You figure out what the changes are.  I don’t think that’s the correct direction to go down, although I was championing some of the legislation as well.

Thank you so much for your time.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you.

Mark Hanson, Douglas Schwade, Buddy Wilkerson, come on down.

MR. MARK HANSON:  My neighbor, Douglas Schwade, just left, but he did share some things with the Senator’s representative.  

Real briefly, I’d like to thank George Kehrer very much.  I think George probably deserves a standing ovation.  [Applause.]
I talked with George because I kept getting settlement offers from my insurance company, and he kind of explained why I shouldn’t settle.  And I’d send them back, sort of nervously, because they told, Gee, we gave you all your Coverage A.  What are you going for here?  Well, no, he was trying to explain to me that You need to come up with B and C, and they managed to do all that; and in kind of a nice way.  Finally, we developed a relationship with California Casualty, and I just got news from them that they are going to reinsure me, too, and triple all of the coverages without too much more cost.  And I wanted thank George for leading me through that.  And also California Casualty, in that they did do right by me, and everything is insured for the future.  So, it’s been very good.

And thanks again, George.

And I wanted to comment on the next challenge of it.  I’m president/CEO of the Heartland Foundation, and Buddy Wilkerson is vice president.  We’re up here right now.  We’ve done some things for fire survivors.  We’re doing seminars now on productivity, communication, and finance.  Tomorrow is the finance seminar at the Heartland office.  It’s all free, so this isn’t a sales thing.  It’s funded by the San Diego Foundation.  But we’ll be talking a lot about ongoing issues.

The next one is:  How do you get sales tax write-offs over four years for your property losses?  And that’s a new thing.  So, I would like to say, Oh, gee, that house you built in 1950 is worth more now than it was then.
Well, yeah, the land is worth more.  
Well, you’re not going to try to write that off are you?  
Yeah, we are.  
So, we’ll be talking about that.  

If anybody would like to attend any of these seminars, we’ll also have them in January, February, March, in Lakeside.  And my phone number is area code 619-261-7180.  I’ll give you more information on that.  

We’re also going to have a fundraiser—I think Bob Dillon, Ziggy Marley, and CSD—to get us more funding to help people with construction materials.

But I wanted to just take a minute and thank everybody who has done so much to assist.  And thank you for being here and working with all of this.  And I’ll turn this over to Buddy Wilkerson, who is much more knowledgeable than I am.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you.  Let’s have Jimmy Jackson and Judy Guishard and Gloria Rocca and Patricia Thomas, in that order, and then we’ll be done.

MR. BUDDY WILKERSON:  I guess to summarize Mark’s statement, he said if you’re on the Heartland Foundation, you don’t want to be on the board when your house has burned down.  His burned; mine burned; and by coincidence we’re on the Heartland Foundation.

I have something that I think is pretty unique.  But before I talk about that one specific issue, I do want to let you know that that listing of all of your items put my wife, who has been a stable woman her whole life, on Prozac.  I think there’s a lot of people here that found out what Prozac is.  And that’s torture.  It’s horrible.  It was second only to losing your house.  It’s when you had to itemize every little thing.  It was terrible.  That should not have to happen.
Okay, I want to talk about a real specific issue, and I’ll be as brief as I can.  I was in a very unique situation.  I do land development in the back country, and I became aware of all the danger.  I had not really done a lot of building—none; not really any—other than to take a Craftsman house and restore it, you know, and that, we took years to do.  But when the house was restored about four years ago, I called my agent and told him I wanted to increase my coverage and my protection.  He made an increase, and I said, Well, there’s another thing.  I have some really valuable things in the house.  I have a Persian carpet, and I have some really valuable things—a gun collection and things like that.  And not until after the fire did I realize that that agent put limits on every one of those items, which, luckily, I got worried about the fire and took the carpet out of the house.


Then the summer before the fire, I had been helping my father-in-law up in Idyllwild get his house cleaned up and ready.  We were planning to sell it eventually.  He’s 88 years old.  I saw the trees that were all dead up in there, and I looked again at our own area and I could see all the brush was dead.  So, the summer before the fire, I called my agent and I said, Well, I’d like to raise my coverage again.  You know, I really didn’t understand how the coverage worked, but I had started watching, you know, and developing, and I started seeing some of the costs, and I called him, and I asked him to raise my coverage.


He said, Well, you’re very adequately protected.  And this is Randy Warner from State Farm.  He told me this.  I got upset.  I said, I want to raise my coverage.  And he said, Well, it could be a problem if you’re overinsured.


I got mad and I said, If you don’t raise my coverage, I’m going to not only get another agent for my house, I’m going to cancel all my car policies with you.  He said, Well, go ahead, basically.  So, I went out and I tried to get . . . 

SENATOR SPEIER:  He said, Go ahead and cancel your policies?  He would not raise your . . .

MR. WILKERSON:  He would not raise it, absolutely.  In fact, he told me it could be a problem if I was overinsured.  To go on with that same thing . . . 

SENATOR SPEIER:  How much were you increasing the insurance?


MR. WILKERSON:  You know what?  I don’t even remember.  I just knew that I was underinsured.  I really was worried.  I had finished a nice home over a period of years, and the numbers right now are kind of. . . . I went through them so many times, I don’t. . . . and actually, they’re not so much an issue as to what happened.


He would not allow me to raise my coverage, and basically, I had a row with him over the telephone, and my family heard it.  My wife was in the kitchen when I was talking to him.  I went out and I did cancel my car insurance.  I went out and I tried with AAA, because I switched over to AAA to get them to cover my house.  They wouldn’t do it because I was up in Crest.  I tried to get another company to cover it.  They wouldn’t do it.  So, I ended up having to stay with him.  But at the same time, my father-in-law up in Idyllwild, with a different agent with State Farm—Legudice (sp?)--I called him to raise his coverage.  You know what?  I heard the same words used:  He’s very adequately insured.  This is a man that had insured him for 10 or 15 years and was a friend.  The same words were used by one and the other.


Now, my house burned, and the very first meeting after my house burned with my insurance agent, I walked in and I sat down by him—and this is up in Alpine—and I said, You know, Randy, I asked you to raise my coverage.  I said, I even got mad and cancelled my car insurance over it.  I said, You have to remember that.


He said, Well, I record most of my conversations, and I’ll look through my records and I’ll find out, and I’ll get back to you.  Well, do you think he ever called me again?  Not on your life.  Each time I was in a meeting with these people in insurance, I mentioned that.  I said, You know, I have requested increase of coverage.


To finish the story, this summer, after the fire, I called Legudice (sp?) up in Idyllwild to raise my father-in-law’s coverage.  I called him and he wasn’t there.  I left a message, and I said, I’m going to call you back in a week or so because we need to cover Mr. [my father-in-law’s]—we need to raise his policy.  I think I called him twice giving him warning.


SENATOR SPEIER:  Did he let you raise it?


MR. WILKERSON:  Let me finish.  [Laughter.]

SENATOR SPEIER:  I’m trying to move you along.

MR. WILKERSON:  I’m sorry, but they are absolute liars, and I caught him lying.  I called him and he said, Well, I’ve done a real study and Mr. Canfield’s very adequately insured.  He’s got great protection.  
I said, Well, you know, when you told me that before, you snowed me.  I didn’t understand insurance before.  I said, I live in the fire area, and I’ve made it a point—I didn’t tell him that my house had burned.  I said, I’ve made it a point to learn about it.  I said, Do you have a calculator?  
He said, Yes. 
 I said, Well, just divide out.

And he said, Well, I’ve done a survey in my area, and you can get your house rebuilt up here for $125 a foot.  
I said, I’m sorry, but you don’t even have any contractors up there.  They’re all down here rebuilding firehouses, so how did you do a survey?  I said, The ones I know from up there are down here.  You don’t have anybody to survey.  I said, Besides, $125 a foot is ridiculous.  I said, Let’s go over and let’s check what he has.  You’ve got your calculator?  Divide the square footage of a house into the total amount.  
He said, Okay, and he divided it out, because he had told me that he had already checked it out.


SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Wilkerson?

MR. WILKERSON:  Anyway, it was $87 a foot was the coverage he told me was adequate.  And in that conversation, I made him double that coverage.


SENATOR SPEIER:  So, he did eventually?


MR. WILKERSON:  Yes, the second year, and after I caught him in a lie.  And the conversation was the same each time, the same words, the same terminology.  Just straight lies.


Anyway, I’m through.


SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you.


What’s the status of your claim?


MR. WILKERSON:  Well, this was so hard on my wife, that I was afraid I was going to lose her.  I didn’t really settle, but what I did was I just got to the limit and then I kind of quit.  But then when I tried to raise the old man’s coverage, it made me mad, and so I went out and filed a lawsuit to get a fair settlement.


SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  Thank you.


Mr. Jackson?

MR. JIMMY JACKSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

My name is Jimmy Jackson.  And as you both know, I am a state legislative employee.  I’m not here in that role, obviously.  I am here in the role of someone who lost their home in the fire.  I also have the distinction of being the only state legislative employee who lost their home in the fire.  And as some of the insurance company representatives already know, I can either work with you or I can be your worst nightmare because I know the legislative process, and I also know what you do to your victims.  Anyway, that being said, I want to address a couple of things that have been said tonight.


With regard to the contents lists, I will tell you that my contents adjuster, who I actually like—I thought that, in the end, he did reasonably fair by me.  He worked with me; he tried to help me remember things.  But in my first meeting with him, when he said, I’m going to need a list of everything that you had—and I’m still in shock; this is about a week-and-a-half after the fire—I said, You mean, you want to know what kind of clothes I have?  He said, I’m sorry, but I need to know how many pairs of boxers and briefs you had.  That’s the degree to which they want a list.


SENATOR SPEIER:  Who’s your insurer?


MR. JACKSON:  You know, I’d rather not say because it’s not about my individual insurer because I’ve talked to too many people with the same issues.  I’ve actually made this into a parlor game for various folks I’ve talked to.  I said, If you want to personalize this, just take the top right-hand drawer of your dresser, mentally picture it, and tell me everything that’s in there right now.  Now multiple that by your entire house.  You get to live the whole thing that we got to live through.  It really does come down to that.

I actually had the distinction of being detained by store security at a major department store about two months after the fire because one of the salespeople noticed that I kept coming in.  I had a notepad, and I had kind of a blank look on my face.  I never bought anything, and I just wandered around aimlessly.  What I was trying to do is I was trying to remember what the hell I had in my house.  And every time I’d go in there I’d see something else and go, Oh, yeah.  I had one of those and write it down, but they were getting worried that I was either casing the joint or I was mentally ill.  [Laughter.]
I’m one of the very lucky ones.  I’m one of the first 5 percent that are back in their homes from the Cedar Fire.  I moved back on October 15th, but it’s not over for me because I found 35 pages of contents lists.  And now what I get to do is I get to reconcile what they valued as the actual cash value compared to what I actually paid for things, submit the receipts, and then I get reimbursement for the $30,000 that they haven’t reimbursed me for because it’s the difference between the inventory value and the depreciated value.  So, I still have a great deal of fun to look forward to during the holidays for myself.

Also, with regard to cost calculators—and Senator Morrow, when one of my boss’s bills was up in Senate Insurance Committee, you gave a very impassioned talk about the fact that you were going to go home and check your own insurance, and I hope you did.  And if you haven’t, I can email your wife a great cost calculator that I have found.

I will tell you what my experience was.  I know exactly what it costs to rebuild my house.  My house was rebuilt for $255,000.  Including little extras like the driveway, it comes to $270,000.  Unfortunately, I know exactly the amount that it cost to replace my house.  I called my insurance agent.  He’s a friend of mine.  He took me through a 30-minute questionnaire, so I’m thinking, Great.  I’m not getting QuickQuote.  I’m going to be okay.  At the end of that, he said, Okay.  My calculations say, or my total thing says that we should insure you for $187,000, which meant that walking in the door, I would have been 20 percent underinsured, and I don’t think it gets any better as we go along.

I will tell you that I cannot. . . . you know, because it’s a new house, because it’s a new mortgage, I actually had a certified appraisal.  The appraiser, who I have talked to since he did the appraisal, appraised the rebuilding cost at $230,000.

You know, it’s inexcusable that a cost calculator would be off that greatly.  I happened to find a great online cost calculator that I went through and answered all the questions honestly about tile and all that kind of stuff.  It came within 1 percent of the rebuilding value of my home.

SENATOR SPEIER:  What’s that cost calculator?

MR. JACKSON:  Rapid-Calc, Castle’s Replacement Cost Estimator.  I’ve actually shared that with several people that I know, and not one of them has come up any less than 10 percent underinsured on their homes.


There have to be solutions that we can come up with.  I understand the legislative progress.  I actually understand that we have to work with the industry.  I actually have some thoughts on how we might be able to do contents replacement to make it easier on, at least, a lot of people.  If AAA says that most policies will eventually be paid out 80 percent of value. . . . if my contents adjuster would have come in the first day or the first month and said, We will settle with you at 80 percent of value and you don’t have to do a contents list, I would have taken it because that would give me two-and-a-half months out of my life back where I could have been doing more productive things than wandering around and getting detained by store security.


I will be glad to work with Brian and other folks in the future to try and help reform some of these things and make it a win-win for the insurance companies too.

I will tell you also—just a short story—my contents adjuster who got here two weeks after the Cedar Fire, which was October 26, the first week in November, he actually arrived in San Diego—and has now moved up from Texas and has an apartment locally because he figures he’s going to be here for a while.  This is one year after the fire.


MS. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  So you live in Alpine?


MR. JACKSON:  No comment.  Like I said, I like him.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you, Mr. Jackson.  [Applause.]
Ms. Guishard.  Gloria Rocca, if you could come forward.  Patricia Thomas and Victor Smith.  If you’ll all come forward, and we’ll be concluding.

MS. JUDY GUISHARD:  Andy Knutson had asked me if I would bring my fax . . . 
SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Guishard, if you would speak into the microphone and identify yourself.

MS. GUISHARD:  Okay.  I’m Judy Guishard, and I live in Harbison Canyon—lived.  Andy Knutson had asked me if I would read you my one-and-only letter that I have ever written to Allstate, and it sort of explains everything in a very short manner.

SENATOR SPEIER:  We don’t want you to read it, though.

MS. RICHÁRD:  Want me to what?

SENATOR SPEIER:  We don’t want you to read it.  Just give us your testimony.

MS. GUISHARD:  This is.

SENATOR SPEIER:  All right.  That’s going to be your testimony?

MS. RICHÁRD:  This is it.

SENATOR SPEIER:  And how long is this letter?

MS. RICHÁRD:  Not very long.  I’ll read fast.  It was my extension.  I asked for an extension on there.  This is my first written correspondence with Allstate:

It would be a pleasant experience if my next letter could be a thank you for your cooperation in handling my claim in a positive and timely manner.  To begin with, I sustained a total fire loss from the Cedar Fire on October 26th, probably having the honor of being the first to go in Harbison Canyon, and I contacted my Allstate agent, John Harris, on the 27th to report my loss, feeling confident of your motto:  “You’re in Good Hands With Allstate.”
I asked him if he would send me a new policy, and he stated he could only provide me with a sample copy.  I asked if he would increase my contents coverage to $10,000 as required by my temporary housing lease agreement.  He replied he could not as he was in the business of insuring houses and not contents.  He also informed me I could cancel my homeowners policy and take out a renters policy to cover my contents.  I have since been paying a premium for a nonexisting house to keep the other parts of my policy in effect.

My renewal policy, which I received May 28th, included a slight increase to $73,609, which is not bad coverage for a house that no longer exists.  And since Mr. Harris insures houses, maybe there’s a code of ethics that might apply or the Insurance Commissioner Garamendi could address my perplexing thoughts over this situation.  
My declaration page states that I have a 750-square-foot house on 100 percent slab.  In actuality, 45 square feet is on a slab, the remainder on peer posts.  There are also some other items under “Details” which are incorrect.  And under “Special Features,” it appears I have only one listed in my declaration page—a certain type of door.

Mr. Harris has been my agent for at least three years.  I’ve never met him.  According to my declaration page, it is evident he has never been to my property.  It would be rather difficult to mistake a house which stood up on five feet on peer posts with one described in my policy as on a 100 percent slab.

Next, regarding my four adjusters, I asked Bill Decker, Adjuster Number 1, for a policy, and he said I would have to contact my agent, which, of course, I did, as stated above.  A few months later in a conversation with other Allstate policyholders—at probably one of George Kehrer’s meetings—I found out there was a booklet written by Allstate, The Claim Handling Process:  What You Should Know.  Interestingly, not one of my four adjusters offered it to me or even told me of its existence.

Steve Beaumont, Adjuster Number 4, states he has always given one to his clients the first time he meets them.  When I asked him about this pamphlet, he provided one for me.  On page 15, it states:  “If you cannot find your policy, contact your Allstate agent for a complete copy or see your claim representative for a sample policy.”  I am so blessed to be in the good hands of Allstate.

Mr. Beaumont, Adjuster Number 4, wanted me to meet with him and his, what I believe they call, an alacrity contractor.  I declined until I obtained a scope of loss from him.  He said he could only give me a copy of what he had in my file, which he kindly sent me.  That illegible piece you have there.  Apparently, he does not know how to contact the Allstate Claims Office or how to run a computer and fax machine, or maybe he works independently of the company with the good hands.

I finally relented and agreed to meet with Mr. Beaumont, Adjuster Number 4, and his contractor, Angel Duran, the estimator from LandMar Construction.  The two of them spent almost four hours going over my house, including floor plans, pictures, granite stone from my fireplace, and the birdhouse made of the original materials of my house, which was built in 1928.  It was not built by today’s conventional construction but was of California single-wall construction and built with full-dimension lumber on the original 480 square feet of the house.

We also discussed that there was more information on my first estimate about my four-by-eight-foot workshop than what was estimated on my whole house.  That information, Exhibit B, about my house is all contained in that one little box, up in Allstate’s first page, that Mr. Bill Decker, Adjuster Number 1 provided, but it is incorrect.  I don’t have 112 square feet of deck nor 90 square feet of screened porch, which is obvious by the floor plan that I provided them.  Amazingly enough, the figures worked out to be the exact amount of coverage in my policy, which was $70,000 and some cents.

While my meeting with Mr. Beaumont, Adjuster Number 4, and Mr. Duran was on March 27th, Mr. Beaumont called and left a message on June 23rd, almost three months later, that he had everything finished up on his end and would like to go over the numbers with me.  Curiously enough, both Mr. Beaumont, Adjuster Number 4, and Mr. Duran met with my next-door neighbor regarding the construction of his house on July 1st, and he got his estimate for rebuilding in about two weeks, according to my neighbor.

A check was delivered to me, along with two letters—Exhibit C—dated April 7th by Larry Barnett, Adjuster Number 3.  One letter stated it was for contents; the other letter stated it was for final payment of ALE, along with Allstate’s belief that it has concluded its handling of my fire loss claim and closing its file.  I wonder how different life would be if I were not in such very good hands with Allstate.

I leased an apartment for six months, originally believing that it would be close to adequate time to rebuild, but it took almost three months just to get your contractor’s estimate.  I have had other expenses that Mr. Barnett, Adjuster Number 3, and I had talked about but have not heard from him since the April 2004 letters and checks, and the lease for the next six months has been increased.  There’s no way I can rebuild by November 30, 2004, the end of my current lease.

Just as an interesting side note, Mr. Decker, Adjuster Number 1, had no foundation listed on his estimate.  Maybe my house was hanging in midair from ropes from heaven.  Mr. Duran, on his estimate, provided $510 for a slab, no footings.  But since it’s five feet off the ground, who needs footings anyway?  Mr. Beaumont, Adjuster Number 4, was at the property and agreed with me that I had serious soil issues since my house is in a creek bed.  My foundation will more than likely be in the thousands of dollars.  Even without a proper foundation, Mr. Duran’s estimate was more than double my policy limits.  And I would imagine that due to the uniqueness of the construction of my home, added with the expense and time in rebuilding with like kind and quality of materials, this may have created the reason for the difficulties and has stymied the replacement of my home.  George Kehrer could explain the value of the lumber in that house that was built in 1928.

Considering the time it has taken to this point, I’ve asked for three requests:  an extension of my “dwelling and other structures” protection, an extension of my personal property protection, and an extension of my ALE, even though my policy states only one year.  I would like these three reasonable requests to be extended for a minimum of one year from each of the current time restrictions.  I know all things are possible with God, and if He chooses to do so, He could have this dwelling rebuilt in the next four months.  But He may not choose to do so, and therefore, I am requesting your cooperation so that I may plan on rebuilding under normal, human circumstances.  
I am anticipating a favorable response from you on the above three requests by August 12th, the date of my current dwelling policy, 180-day cut-off time.
Thank you for your anticipated cooperation, Judy Guishard.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you.

MS. GUISHARD:  I did get an RFA that I sent to you before I ever got this letter out.  The day before I sent this letter out to them, I was refused on ALE because they said, We’re doing exactly what our policy says with the Department of Insurance.  We will not extend  the ALE under any circumstances.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Have you met with Ms. Chilgren in the back?

MS. GUISHARD:  No.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Do you want to?

MS. GUICHARD:  It would be nice.  I’ve looked at this because I’m a senior.  I am on a very limited income.  I have 50 percent coverage over my $70,000, but there is no way that I could. . . . with that you have to spend that money in order to collect.  You have to go out and get a loan, a construction loan.  There is no way that I can go out and get a construction loan.  My income is less than my rent is at the moment.  All I would ask for is just a little compassion on Allstate’s part.  They know that my house, according to their contractor, would cost more than twice as much to replace.  Why could they not just write me the check for the $35,000?

On the soils issues, they agree, it’s going to be terrible on the land stability because I’m in a creek bed, and I have many boulders that have to move.  My fourth adjuster agreed that that would be there—they could just issue me that $35,000 and that $10,000, and I go away happy.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Ms. Chilgren, would you like to comment?

MS. CHILGREN:  Hi.  Delia Chilgren again with Allstate Insurance Company.

I just wanted to indicate to you that we have agreed to go into mediation with this particular customer, and I would be happy to chat with her in the back of the room to begin to get started on talking about some of the issues that she has raised, and hopefully we can make some progress.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Okay.  Very good.

And then, if you would sign one of these Authorization and Consent forms, the committee can also assist you as well, which is this form right here.

All right.  Mr. Smyth?
MR. VICTOR SMYTH:  My name is Victor Smyth.  I lived at 614 Mountain View Road in La Cresta, and the home was destroyed last year in the Wildland fires.  I was insured by Allied Insurance.

Now, the reason I insisted on letting you know that I had a request to speak is because when the Insurance Commissioner was here last year, I had a request in and I didn’t get to speak there.  But I wanted to talk about Allied Insurance.  I met with the agent, the head agent, and she told me that there would be no more—that was in, I think, April, May, of last year when John Garamendi was here—that there would be no more skullduggery, and I use that term.  I said, I’ll talk to you, but please don’t try to jack me around on my claim.  She said, No problem. We’ll have this thing solved in no time at all.

So, I went through living hell with Allied Insurance and their adjusters.  Early on, when the first guy got there, they cut you a check right away, and then they start a process of confusion.  Then they come back and they will cut you another check, and it won’t be for the full amount, and then they will get you off track by any means possible to get you going in the wrong direction.  They’ll explain part of your policy but not all of your policy.

You heard the man, Rajesh, here, and he had a pile of paper maybe this tall.  My pile is about this tall, and those are letters that I answered.  I finally had to, out of necessity, not answer anything on a computer or take the time to check spelling or any of that.  I just answered, as I was going about trying to rebuild this home and get some resolution on this insurance stuff and get rid of whatever is going on in your regular life—paying your bills and so on.  I handwrote all of my requests.

At that meeting with John Garamendi, there was a guy there, his Number 2 guy.  I think his name was Jones—Jim Jones?

MR. [UNIDENTIFIED]:  Jim Johnson.

MR. SMYTH:  Jim Johnson.  They requested that I give them an RFA about some of the problems I was having with Allied, and so, I handed it to him.  I said, Now, every time I complain about anything that they’ve said, there’s been some form of harassment.  One of these deals where they will request you to do a little extra on that inventory list, or This isn’t quite right; go back and do this, and so on.  So, he says, I will absolutely guarantee that the Department of Insurance never allows that; they wouldn’t dare.  Well, they were doing that.  Finally, I talked to Andy Knutson and I said, Hey, these guys are harassing the hell out of me.  They’re requiring all kinds of little things, and they’re making little innuendos.  There’s more and more paperwork involved with everything that I do.  And I’m trying to get some questions answered, and they won’t answer that question, and they gave me the runaround.

Well, anyway, so when I told him that, and I said, Yes, but I said, I’ve got Jim Johnson; he’s on my side, and by golly, he’ll straighten it out, he kind of chuckled.  He said, Jim Johnson retired a couple of weeks ago.  So, my advocate was gone, and I was sitting out there naked with Allied just raising hell with me.


I recently got a call from the same woman that was here from Allied that turned into kind of a nasty, little person to deal with, and the voice was fairly sweet.  I went, What is up now?  And she made some offers, and I accepted most of them.  It was additional monies.  It never quite took care of my underinsurance problem.  What they required me to do was. . . . and I had a policy that said that 100 percent replacement, too, and that was part of my RFA, and I sent quite a few RFAs in to the Department of Insurance.

On their underwriter’s side, Allied would answer the Department of Insurance underwriter’s section.  That section was very professional.  They sent me copies of the letters that Allied sent them on my underinsurance issues.  I was able to look at what Allied said and then answer back to the Department of Insurance in kind of a sane and complete manner.

Now, I also now know that there’s two or three other sections of the Department of Insurance in Los Angeles, on Spring Street, and that I had to get involved in a complaint section side of it.  Well, those folks, I’ve had so many investigators from the Department of Insurance as I’ve had. . . . I had seven adjusters.  Seven or eight.  And I’ve had four investigators.  Three or four.  I get these letters that, Your company says that you’ve settled everything with them, which I don’t think I have, and that I’m still pursuing the underinsurance part, because I was underinsured.  And I don’t want anybody else to buy a policy from an insurance company and go through what I had to go through to get my settlement.
And I think the State of California has a thing called the Insurance Code, and it’s very similar to all government codes.  It is law, and I’m surprised that somewhere along the line the Attorney General hasn’t gotten hold of some of these people and wrung their little necks a little bit, like they’ve been wringing us through the wringer.  And I don’t understand—it’s a code.  There’s been violations of that code in the dealing with everybody—all the recipients of the insurance.  And the delays and all of that.  Most of those are some violation of that Insurance Code.
One of the deals the guy did was I had a contractor.  One of the adjusters went to the contractor and asked him to do additional scopes of loss and started to interfere with what I had going, and he poisoned my bid from that contractor.  And how did he do that?  He simply told him the limits of my policy.  So, this guy was bidding on the limits of my policy, and that’s a violation of some of the codes.  I have yet to hear anything back from the Department of Insurance on that.

SENATOR SPEIER:  You have filed an RFA.

MR. SMYTH:  I’ve filed several.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Mr. Cignarale, will you follow up on that?  The Insurance Commissioner has extraordinary authority to enforce the Insurance Code.

MR. SMYTH:  But I don’t see it being enforced, or they wouldn’t be doing the type of little dirty tricks that they’re doing to people, and it’s very subtle often.  It’s additional letters.  It’s withholding funds.  It’s having that letter in one hand or that check in one hand—Sign this.  And when I said, Can I take that and go read it? the adjuster at that time—Kathy was her name—and she said, Oh, yes, you can read it, and here’s your checks, and by the way, you don’t have to sign that, because I had it in my hand then.  I showed it to George Kehrer, and he said, You’re very lucky you didn’t sign that, because what that required me to do is I would have lost many of my benefits of my policy by signing that.  I would have signed away things.
SENATOR SPEIER:  Was that a white waiver?

MR. SMYTH:  No, it wasn’t a white waiver.  I forget what they called it, but it was a waiver of some of my rights, and it required me to come up with the exact cost of all the material that was in my old home. 
And so, that’s the kind of thing. . . . that is a direct violation of the Insurance Code.  But I haven’t heard anything back from the Department of Insurance.  So, I’m not going to complain.

In fact, it’s time to quit.  And thank you very much for coming down here.

SENATOR SPEIER:  Thank you, Mr. Smyth, for your testimony.

All right.  Is that everyone?

Senator Morrow, would you like to make any closing comments?

All right.  Ladies and gentlemen, we want to thank you for your attention.  As you can tell, we are very committed to trying to resolve issues with particular insureds with their insurance companies if they are so inclined.  And we will pursue those cases that have been brought to our attention, and we will also develop an agenda for legislation for next year, and we will negotiate with some of the insurers on some of the issues that we discussed earlier tonight, particularly around the inventory issue.

And we will conclude this hearing.  It stands adjourned.
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